
        

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Monday, July 7, 2014 
 

7:00 PM 
 
 

1. Call to Order. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. Roll Call. 
 

4. Announcements, Acknowledgments and Communications and Reports. 
 
Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to Fred & Patty Fox by Mayor Barb Dempsey. 
 

5. Adoption of Agenda. 
 

6. Public Participation. 
 

7. Administrative Response to Issues or Questions Raised During Previous Meetings. 
 

8. Approval of Minutes. 
 

9. General Business. 
 
9-A – Public Hearing for the Reallocation of Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Funding for Fiscal Years 2013-2015. 
 
9-B – Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amending the Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) District Boundaries. 
 
9-C – Request City Commission Consideration and Approval of City Manager 
Appointment and Employment Agreement. 
 
9-D – Request Approval of a One-Year Commitment with Shelbyvision Presents, LLC, 
for Producing an Independence Day Event in Mount Clemens from June 26 through June 
28, 2015. 
 
9-E – Adoption of a Resolution Opposing the Legalization of Marijuana for General Use 
in Macomb County Communities. 



 
 
 
9-F – Approve Purchases and Payment of Invoices. 
 

10. Consent Agenda. 
 
10-A – City Commission Approval of Fiber Technologies Networks, L.L.C., METRO 
Act Right-of-Way Permit. 
 
10-B – Request Street Closure for Lodewyck Street Block Party on August 16, 2014. 
 
10-C – Request Approval for The Old Crowd Parade on August 21, 2014. 
 

11. City Manager’s Report. 
 

12. Commissioners’ Comments. 
 

13. Adjournment. 
 

The City of Mount Clemens will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and 
services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and audiotapes of printed materials 
being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing 
upon one week-notice to the City of Mount Clemens.  Individuals with disabilities 
requiring auxiliary aids should contact the City of Mount Clemens by writing or calling 
the following: 
 

City Clerk’s Office 
One Crocker Boulevard 

Mount Clemens, Michigan  48043 
586.469.6818, Extension 310 

911 - TDD 



 

 

EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 
 
Administrative Response to Issues or Questions Raised During Previous Meetings 
 

1. Sidewalks 
 
Section 30.103 of the City Code states: 
 
Whenever the Director of Public Works shall determine that a sidewalk is 
unsafe for use, or required to be constructed for the public safety, he shall 
give written notice thereof to the owner of the abutting premises by 
mail...  The notice shall specify the construction of the sidewalk required 
and specifications therefor, or the condition to be repaired and the nature 
of the repairs to be made.  In the event such owner fails to repair or 
construct such sidewalk within 30 days, the Director of Public Works 
shall report same to the City Commission with the request that he be 
authorized to repair or construct the same.  Upon receipt of any such 
report of the failure of such owner to repair the sidewalk within the time 
specified in such notice, or such request for authority for immediate 
construction or repair, the City Commission may determine to construct 
or repair same by resolution and order the Director of Public Works to 
proceed with the required work. 
 
The cost of repairs or construction hereunder, if made by the City, shall 
be charged against the premises abutting such sidewalk and the owner 
thereof, in accordance with the provisions of the Charter relative to 
special assessments. 
 
As stated at the June 2, 2014 City Commission meeting, this process 
requires sidewalk inspections, written notices and public hearings.  While 
I appreciate volunteerism, I doubt it is practically feasible or legally 
permissible to have volunteers successfully fulfill the requirements 
outlined in Section 30.103 any faster than a sidewalk replacement program 
initiated this fall and executed in 2015.  However, please feel free to seek 
additional information about Section 30.103 from the City Attorney. 
 
In the meantime, please be advised building inspectors identify dangerous 
and unsafe sidewalks during the City’s Certificate of Occupancy process 
and requires them to be replaced.  The attached “Occupancy List” shows 
the 64 Certificates of Occupancy issued this year to date.  The City has 
issued more than 800 Certificates of Occupancy in the last ten years.  
Accordingly, these sidewalks have all been inspected and repaired or 
replaced as necessary. 



 

 

2. Industrial Facilities Exemption 
 
The Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts Act, also 
known as the Industrial Facilities Exemption, provides a tax incentive to 
manufacturers to enable renovation and expansion of aging facilities, 
assist in the building of new facilities and to promote the establishment of 
high tech facilities.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption (IFE) certificate 
entitles the facility to exemption from ad valorem real and/or personal 
property taxes for a term of 1-12 years as determined by the local unit of 
government.  Applications are filed, reviewed and approved by the local 
unit of government, but are also subject to review by the Michigan 
Economic Development Corporation. 
 
The City Commission adopted a resolution approving the application for 
IFE certificates on April 21, 2008 and the State Tax Commission (STC) 
approved the IFE certificates later in 2008.  The City and JB Cutting, Inc., 
also entered into an IFE Agreement (attached) outlining terms and 
conditions pertaining to the approval.  Section 3 of the Agreement states in 
relevant part, “The Applicant understands that if projected job creation 
and/or retention has not been achieved as stated in the application or the 
construction and/or expansion project has not been completed or 
expenditures made as described in the application, the City has the right to 
reduce the term or revoke the IFTs and recapture from the Applicant the 
total amount of taxes abated by the IFTs.”  As this is a matter of contract 
law, I will request the City Attorney review the issue and schedule a 
closed session pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act (Act 267 
of 1976) to consider attorney-client privilege material exempt from 
discussion or disclosure by state or federal statute. 
 

3. Local Financial Stability and Choice Act (Public Act 436 of 2012) 
 
I have scheduled a meeting with Deputy Treasurer Wayne Workman and 
Ed Koryzno, Director of the Bureau of Local Government Services at the 
Michigan Department of Treasury, on July 9.  The purpose of the meeting 
is to discuss the Local Financial Stability and Choice Act including the 
preliminary review I will request if the Charter Amendment is not 
approved and the City's options if the State determines a financial 
emergency exists.  I will provide a report on these issues at the July 21 
City Commission meeting. 



Occupancy List 07/02/14

StatusCO Number Parcel Number Property Address Issued To Paid Owed
OF140005 05-11-10-228-011 140 MARK DR SOUTHWEST HOUSING SOLUTIONS COISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140069 05-11-10-232-007 211 N CHRISTINE CIR TERRA, CYNTHIA M ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF110195 05-11-10-232-011 203 N CHRISTINE CIR DEBRA SANTI ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130696 05-11-10-233-004 112 S CHRISTINE CIR KURZAWA, LISA SUSAN ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140058 05-11-11-257-025 320 EUCLID AVE 68095 MAIN STREET LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130643 05-11-11-277-029 42 SCOTT BLVD MARTINEZ-HERNANDEZ, JOSE L ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130595 05-11-11-277-033 32 SCOTT BLVD PENNSYLVANIA INVESTMENTS, LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130613 05-11-11-328-002 95 PARKVIEW AVE BENKHOUCHA, HASSAN ARSEN ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130609 05-11-11-332-015 154 GALLUP AVE DELIA, JOSEPH ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130501 05-11-11-360-002 135 GRAND AVE MUTUAL INVESTMENTS REALTY, INC. ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF120273 05-11-11-376-020 104 LINCOLN ST 104 LINCOLN APARTMENTS LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130646 05-11-11-402-008 125 GALLUP AVE MERRILL LYNCH MTG. INVESTORS INCISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140017 05-11-11-407-007 33 HOLLYWOOD CT PENNSYLVANIA INVESTMENTS ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130592 05-11-11-427-009 18 MOSER PL VISTA PROPERTIES MANAGMENT LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF110053 05-11-11-428-026 21 MOSER PL ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF100011 05-11-11-452-008 38 LINCOLN ST CHRISTINE BECHEN ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF110145 05-11-11-476-018 110 CLINTON ST GLAESER, ROBERT ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140001 05-11-12-306-006 71 ORCHARD ST CREATIVE ACCEPTANCE, LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130527 05-11-12-312-003 110 EUCLID AVE 261 CAPITAL LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140065 05-11-12-312-011 265 N WALNUT ST HOLLOWAY, LORI ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00



Occupancy List 07/02/14

StatusCO Number Parcel Number Property Address Issued To Paid Owed
OF130697 05-11-13-107-011 123 MICHIGAN AVE MURPHY, RYAN ISSUED (FINAL)  $50.00  $0.00

OF130546 05-11-13-152-002 54 GIBBS ST RIO VISTA FARMS REAL ESTATE LLCCISSUED (FINAL)  $165.00  $0.00

OF130571 05-11-13-155-008 58 FESSENDEN ST 261 CAPITAL LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130488 05-11-13-155-015 82 FESSENDEN ST KHOURI, AYEMAN ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140051 05-11-13-155-023 19 DON ST ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130545 05-11-13-157-007 27 EASTMAN ST REAL ESTATE ONE ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130687 05-11-13-158-007 185 DICKINSON AVE CARTWRIGHT, LUCILLE ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140045 05-11-13-158-015 11 DICKINSON PL GALJOVSKI, MITRE ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130549 05-11-13-305-001 13 DICKINSON PL rech realty co. ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF120462 05-11-13-306-016 212 RIVERSIDE DR MEEHAN, MARISSA ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF120353 05-11-13-308-048 160 EASTMAN ST MAGIERSKI, GREGORY ALLEN ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130651 05-11-14-103-014 21 WOOLWORTH CT RONDO INVESTMENTS LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF120403 05-11-14-176-023 90 MILLER ST VONITTER, DALE ALAN ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130560 05-11-14-177-010 91 MILLER ST BYRNE NORMAN ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF120349 05-11-14-181-002 97 SOUTH AVE WRIGHT, COLIN M ISSUED (FINAL)  $170.00  $0.00

OF140010 05-11-14-204-006 50 NEW ST THE DARKROOM PHOTOGRAPHY STU ISSUED (FINAL)  $560.00  $0.00

OF130610 05-11-14-233-035 23 DICKINSON AVE UNIT H ADVANCE INVESTMENT LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140035 05-11-14-261-123 98 NB GRATIOT AVE #23 ROSIEK, RONALD A ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130706 05-11-14-281-002 55 RIVERSIDE DR 2ND MORTGAGE LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130616 05-11-14-303-004 147 MOROSS AVE SHERRY CODY ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00



Occupancy List 07/02/14

StatusCO Number Parcel Number Property Address Issued To Paid Owed
OF120370 05-11-14-306-019 186 BEULAND AVE LAUDEMAN, WILLIAM  R ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130658 05-11-14-328-007 44 LESLIE ST JOHN GRAHAM INC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130670 05-11-14-330-009 25 SB GRATIOT AVE FRAD PROPERTIES, LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130558 05-11-14-332-046 151 LOIS LANE BEARING GROUP REAL ESTATE ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF120242 05-11-14-333-003 109 SMITH ST KNIGHT, NICOLE MARIE ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130699 05-11-14-333-012 135 SMITH ST MURRAY, THOMAS ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130489 05-11-14-333-012 135 SMITH ST ELLIS, RICHARD W & ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF120348 05-11-14-405-019 22 MEADLE ST AFRAM, IBRAHIM OKLA ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130640 05-11-14-426-004 19 MEADLE ST RONDO INVESTMENTS LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $320.00  $0.00

OF130667 05-11-14-426-024 50 DIEHL DR KULBACKI, ELIZABETH ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130679 05-11-14-451-005 225 S MAIN ST TURNING POINT MACOMB ISSUED (FINAL)  $0.00  $0.00

OF140061 05-11-14-453-007 101 BEYNE ST RONDO INVESTMENTS LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140042 05-11-15-278-015 120 S HIGHLAND AVE SOUTHWEST HOUSING SOLUTIONS COISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF120278 05-11-15-279-009 109 FLORAL AVE BEARING GROUP REAL ESTATE ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130522 05-11-15-279-017 121 FLORAL AVE WATSON, DONALD D. ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130622 05-11-15-476-007 646 WELLINGTON CR BLVD EL AMIN, HAMEED ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF120412 05-11-15-481-032 962 HUNTINGTON DR KLEIN, WERNER ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF140022 05-11-22-204-009 980 CHIPPEWA RD SOBIESKI, WILLIAM ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130624 05-11-22-251-001 1459 MULBERRY DR BALL, LISA ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130672 05-11-22-279-024 1300 BALMORAL DR HERRON, THOMAS C ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00



Occupancy List 07/02/14

StatusCO Number Parcel Number Property Address Issued To Paid Owed
OF130556 05-11-23-127-018 1128 SB GRATIOT AVE IPK MANAGEMENT COMPANY, LLC ISSUED (FINAL)  $200.00  $0.00

OF130680 05-11-23-152-052 305 IROQUOIS DR RHOADES, JASON ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

OF130623 05-11-23-154-013 1472 SB GRATIOT AVE P & J TRADING SUPPLY ISSUED (FINAL)  $200.00  $0.00

OF140014 05-61-14-261-111 98 NB GRATIOT AVE #11 WEYHING, BURT THOMAS IV ISSUED (FINAL)  $160.00  $0.00

 $10,625.00  $0.00Occupancies Found:  64

OccDateFinaled Range from
01/01/2014 to 06/18/2014
And OccStatus = ISSUED

(FINAL)



CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS / J.B. CUTTING, INC. 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION AGREEMBNT 

-i-r 
This Agreement is entered into this 8 1 day of I , 20 O%, by and between the 
CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, located at One Crocker 
Boulevard, Motint Clemens, Michigan 48043, C'City") and J.B. CUTTING, INC,, a Michigan 
Corporation, located at 1 7 1 Grand Avenue, Mount Clemens, Michigan 4 8043 ("Applicant"). 

WHEREAS, the Applicant is desirous of operating an illdustrial ente~prise on property 
commonly known as 25 Eldridge, 163 Grand Avenue, and 171 Grand Avenue, Mount Cle~nens, 
Michigan 48043; and 

WHEREAS, the City is desirous of expanding the economic growth of the City by, among other 
things, eucou ragi ng industrial d eveloprnent and redevelopment within the City; and 

WHl3REAS, the Applicant has represented to the City that the industrial enterprise at this 
locationwiUgenerate6~~ewjobs,vetah30jobssndincreasecapitalhprovementsa~d/or . 
personal property investinent by approximately $1,590,000.00; and shall make real property 
improvements and investments of approximately $425,000.00; su~d 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has submitted applications to the City for the granting of hdustrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificates (IFTs) pursuant to Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; the 
terms, conditions and representations contained therein are hereby incorporated by reference; and 

WIIEREAS, the Applicant recog~izes and acknowledges that the City has relied upon the 
Applicant's representations and that part of the City's consideration for the granting of the IFTs 
is the representation of the Applicant to invest in the proposed development and to provide new 
jobs and/or retain jobs as indicated on its specificatio~~ for IFT Exemption Certificates, as well as 
to operate the facility for at least the duration of the IFTs; and 

WlBIUtAS, the City has previously formed an Industrial Development District wit lh the City 
pursuant to Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, Public Act 334 o f  1993 requires that any terms or conditions that are intended to be 
I 

part of an agreement for tax abatement pursuant to Public Act 198 of 1974 must be put in writing 
and executed by the parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the nlutual promises and covenants contained in this 
Agreement, the City and Applicant hereby agree as follows: 

1. GrantofAbatement. The City on 
approving the application for Industrial 
shall have the option of terminating this Agreement, upon written notice to the City, if the 

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle



Michigan Tax Commission does not issue Certificates covering the planned investments as 
approved by the City. 

2. TheApplica~lt,~~ponreceivingapprovalfornjTsfromtheCityforapeiiodof 7 years 
Ih forrealproperty,and 1 3 -  yearsforpersonalproperty,shallnotlaterthantl~e 10 dayof 

January immediately followillg the second year after the issuance date of tile IPTs sub~nit 
conlpleted IFT Status Reports, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "I", to the City 
Treasurer, stating: 

a, Thenumberofnewjobspron~isedhtheIPTapplicationsa~~dtheactual~~~lmber 
of new jobs created. 

b. If the IPT was granted on the basis ofjob retention, the number of employees at 
the time of the application and the current i~umber of employees. 

c. If the projection for creation andlor retention ofjobs was not reached, give 
explanation. 

d. Tl~eesthatedprojectcostgivenintheapplicationsandtheactualyrojectcost. 
e. If the actual costs differ substantially from projected cost, give explanation. 

AII information submitted by the Applicant to the City Treasurer is subject to audit by the 
City and Applicant shall cooperate wvitlf City personnel in that audit process. 

3, TheApplica~~tfurtherageeeestosuB~~~itareportregardhgstatusofen~plopentevery 
two years beginning two years after submission of the letter required in Item 2, on or before 
December 31SL, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "2". If employment has not 
remained or exceeded the number given in the application, an explanation for this shall be 
included. This report shall be submitted beginning with the second year after the issuance date 
of the Ws .  

The Applicant understands that if projected job creation and/or retention has not bee11 
achieved as stated in the application or the construction and/or expansion project has not been 
completed or expenditures made as described in the application, the City has the right ta reduce 
the term or revoke the IFTs and recapture from the Applicant the total amount of taxes abated by 
the FTs, 

Further, the Applicat~t will not cease its operations within the District prior to the 
termination of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificates without a transfer of the 
certificates being approved by the City Commission to a tllird party that continues adequate 
operations within the District or elsewhere ~ I I  the City with the City's approval. Applicant will 
not become delinquent in payment of taxes owing under these certificates. If the Applicant 
ceases operations within the District prior to the termination of the Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificates without a transfer of the certificates as indicated above, the City may 
commenceproceedil~gsavailabletoitunderthisApmentforth~vifh. 

4. The parties agree that the City, in approving the tax abatement, has relied on the good I 
faith of the Applicant's estimates and approximations contained in its application. In addition to 
any other remedies provided by law, the City shall have the right to request that the State Tax 

.. 1 
I ! 

. 
r I  

1 ,  

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle



Commission either reduce the tern1 of or revoke, the abate~neut prospectively except that for a 
, default in section 3 above, the Applicant sllall repay the City all abated taxes which previously . . 

benefited the Appl icmt for disbursement proportionately to a1 l taxing units having taxing 
jurisdiction over the improvements, plus all accl~~ed interest, penalties and administration fees 
applicable to this exemption in the same amount as would be collected if this tax were 
considered dehquent and the City may, at its option, seek repayment of the taxes as allowed 
under section 21(2) of the tax abatement statute, MCL 207.571(2). 

5 .  The Applicant agrees and understands that in the event an appeal of the assessment on the 
facility is  filed with the Michigan Tax Tribunal, the City Commission, at its discretion, has the 
right to reduce the term of the abatement certificates, provided that the Applicant andor its 
representative and the City Assessor are first given the opportunity to address the Commission as 
to flle merits of the appeal. *- 

6. No payment o f  any kind in excess of the fee allowed by Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
mended by Public Act 323 of 1996, has been made or promised in exchange for favorable 
consideration of an exemption certificate application. 

By the signatures of representatives of both the Applicant and the City below, it is  understood 
that both the Applicant's investment in the project and the City's investment througl~ the granting 
of the TFTs is to encourage economic growih. It is also acknowledged that certain economic 
conditions can, at times, prohibit the maintenance of the Applicant's targeted status. It is  
understood that if such conditions exist at the time of the designated Applicant reporis, the City 
Commission will carefully evaluate the Applicant's situation, and will inform the Applicant if 
any action is considered in order to give the Applicant an opportunity to address the City M 

Commission, 
1: 

Applicant: 

J.B. CUTTING, INC., a Michigan Corporation, 

By: 

Its: President 

City: 

CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, a Miclligan 
Municipal ~ol f i t ion ,  

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle



CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 

County of Macomb    June 9, 2014 

State of Michigan    Commission Chambers 

 

A special meeting of the Mount Clemens City Commission was held on Monday, June 9, 2014,  

at 5:45 p.m. The meeting was held in the Commission Chambers of the Municipal Building, One  

Crocker Boulevard, Mount Clemens, Michigan.  Present at the meeting were Mayor Barb  

Dempsey and Commissioners Gary Blash (arrived at 5:50 p.m.), Roger Bunton, Ronald Campbell,  

Lois Hill, Denise Mentzer and Joe Rheker (arrived at 6:20 p.m.).  Also in attendance were  

Michael Murray, City Attorney; and Lynne Kennedy, City Clerk. 

 

Mayor Dempsey called the meeting to order and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 4. 

 

Commissioner Bunton made a motion, supported by Commissioner Hill, to adopt the agenda as 

presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION WAS CONDUCTED, ITEM 5. 

 

CONTINUED DISCUSSION REGARDING CITY MANAGER SELECTION PROCESS 

WAS CONDUCTED, ITEM 6A. 

 

INTERVIEWS FOR THE POSITION OF CITY MANAGER WERE CONDUCTED, 

ITEMS 6B AND 6C. 

 

Mr. Steven Brown and Mr. Jason Friedmann interviewed for the position of City Manager. 

 

CONTINUED DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CITY MANAGER SELECTION WAS 

CONDUCTED, ITEM 6D. 

 

Commissioner Bunton made a motion, supported by Commissioner Blash, to offer the position 

of City Manager to Steven Brown, subject to negotiation of a contract acceptable to the parties. 

 

The vote on the motion was: 

 

Ayes:  Dempsey, Hill, Blash, Bunton 

Nays:  Mentzer, Rheker, Campbell 

 

The motion passed. 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS WERE RECEIVED, ITEM 7. 

 

 



Commissioner Rheker made a motion, supported by Commissioner Bunton, to adjourn the 

meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

        

Barb Dempsey, Mayor 

 

__________________________________________ 

Lynne Kennedy, City Clerk 

 

 



June 16, 2014 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 

County of Macomb       June 16, 2014 

State of Michigan       Commission Chambers  

 

A regular meeting of the Mount Clemens City Commission was held on Monday, June 16, 2014, 

at 7:00 p.m.  The meeting was held in the Commission Chambers of the Municipal Building, One 

Crocker Boulevard, Mount Clemens, Michigan.  Present at the meeting were Mayor Barb 

Dempsey and Commissioners Gary Blash, Roger Bunton, Ronald Campbell, Lois Hill, Denise 

Mentzer and Joe Rheker.  Also in attendance were Robert Bruner, Jr., Interim City Manager; 

Michael Murray, City Attorney; and Lynne Kennedy, City Clerk. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, COMMUNICATIONS AND 

REPORTS WERE ADDRESSED, ITEM 4. 

 

THE ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 5. 

 

Commissioner Hill made a motion, supported by Commissioner Bunton, to adopt the agenda as 

presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION WAS CONDUCTED, ITEM 6. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSE TO ISSUES OR QUESTIONS RAISED DURING 

PREVIOUS MEETINGS WERE RECEIVED, ITEM 7. 

 

 APPROVAL OF MINUTES WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 8. 

 

Commissioner Bunton made a motion, supported by Commissioner Hill, to approve the minutes 

of the regular City Commission meeting of June 2, 2014, as presented.  The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO THE AMENDED AGREEMENT WITH OAKLAND 

UNIVERSITY FOR THE LEASE OF ADDITIONAL PARKING SPACES IN THE 

MUNICIPAL PARKING LOTS WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 9-A. 

 

Commissioner Hill made a motion, supported by Commissioner Bunton, to approve the amended 

agreement between Oakland University and the City of Mount Clemens for 75 additional parking 

spaces in the Municipal Parking Lots. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL TO CONTINUE THE PUBLICATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE 

CITY NEWSLETTER THROUGH C & G NEWSPAPERS WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 

9-B. 

 

Commissioner Bunton made a motion, supported by Commissioner Blash, to approve the 

printing and distribution of the Clementimes newsletter on a quarterly basis at a cost of $1,070 

per publication. 

 

The vote on the motion was: 

 



June 16, 2014 

Ayes:  Hill, Blash, Bunton, Dempsey 

Nays:  Mentzer, Rheker, Campbell 

 

The motion passed. 

 

APPROVAL OF PURCHASES AND THE PAYMENT OF INVOICES WERE 

CONSIDERED, ITEM 9-C. 

 

Commissioner Hill made a motion, supported by Commissioner Mentzer, to approve the 

purchases and payments of invoices, as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

THE CONSENT AGENDA WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 10. 

 

Commissioner Blash made a motion, supported by Commissioner Bunton, to approve the 

consent agenda as presented. 

 

In Item 10-A, the request to approve the Daughters of Macomb annual parade route on August 7, 

2014, beginning at 9:15 a.m. and approve the closure of Macomb Place from Southbound Gratiot 

Avenue to John Barleycorn’s was approved. 

 

The motion passed unanimously. 

 

THE CITY MANAGER’S REPORT WAS GIVEN, ITEM 11. 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS WERE RECEIVED, ITEM 12. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION WAS CONDUCTED, ITEM 13. 

 

Commissioner Blash made a motion, supported by Commissioner Bunton, to enter into executive 

session to consider negotiations regarding collective bargaining agreement.  The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

Executive Session began at 8:50 p.m. 

 

Commissioner Blash made a motion, supported by Commissioner Mentzer, to return to regular 

session.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE JULY 1, 2013 – JUNE 30, 2016 FIREFIGHTERS COLLECTIVE 

BARGAINING AGREEMENT WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 14-A. 

 

Commissioner Mentzer made a motion, supported by Commissioner Blash, to approve the 

proposed July 1, 2013 – June 30, 2016 Firefighters contract and authorize the execution of same.  

The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Commissioner Blash made a motion, supported by Commissioner Bunton, to adjourn the 

meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 



June 16, 2014 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Barb Dempsey, Mayor 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Lynne Kennedy, City Clerk  



EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item No. 9-A 
 

 
Public Hearing for the Reallocation of Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Funding for Fiscal Years (FY) 2013 – 2015 
 
City Administration is requesting the reallocation of FY13-FY15 CDBG funds.  $44,475 
would be reallocated from the Clemens Park Expansion Project to Road Projects due to 
unsuccessful negotiations on the purchase of property adjacent to Clemens Park and the 
need to spend the funds by the end of the calendar year.  This reallocation has been 
reviewed by the Public Services Department. 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to elicit public input on how these dollars should be 
spent within the City.  Notice of the public hearing was published in The Macomb Daily. 
 
The City Commission will approve the final reallocations at its July 21, 2014, meeting. 
  
SUBMITTED BY:   Brian L. Tingley 

Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Move to open the Public Hearing for the 

Reallocation of Community Development Block 
Grant Funding for Fiscal Years 2013 – 2015. 

 
 Move to close the Public Hearing for the 

Reallocation of Community Development Block 
Grant Funding for Fiscal Years 2013 – 2015. 



EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item No. 9-B 
 
 
Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amending the Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) District Boundaries 
 
On March 3, 2014, the City Commission adopted a resolution of intent to amend the 
boundaries of the DDA by including the two parcels that comprise the west bank of the 
Clinton River between the Crocker and Dickinson bridges.  A public hearing was 
conducted on April 7, 2014. 

Notice of the public hearing was published twice in The Macomb Daily, mailed to all 
taxpayers of record within the DDA, mailed to the taxing jurisdictions and posted in 20 
public places within the district. 
 
The proposed ordinance has been drafted by the City Attorney. 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Brian L. Tingley 

Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Move to approve the introduction and first reading 

of an Ordinance amending the Downtown 
Development Authority district boundaries and set 
July 21, 2014, as the date for the second reading and 
adoption. 



 

AMENDMENT TO DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  

14.300, Sec. 5 
 
CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, MICHIGAN 
 
Section 14.300, Sec. 5 is hereby amended and shall now read as follows: 

14.305 Sec. 5. 

DESCRIPTION OF DOWNTOWN DISTRICT. 

The Downtown District in which the Authority shall exercise its powers as provided by Act 197 
shall consist of the described territory in the City, subject to such changes as may hereinafter be 
made pursuant to this ordinance and Act 197, as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made 
a part hereof.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 

ORDINANCE 14.300, SEC. 5 
 

Downtown Development District (DDD) – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

Land situated in the City of Mount Clemens, County of Macomb and State of Michigan, to-wit: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of Northbound M-3 (South Broadway) and Kibbee Street; thence Northerly 
along Northbound M-3 (South Broadway) to its intersection with Market Street; thence Southeasterly 
along Market Street to its intersection with the centerline of the Clinton River; thence Easterly along the 
centerline of the Clinton River to a point of intersection with Avery Street extended; thence Northerly 
along Avery Street extended to a point of intersection with North River Road; thence Westerly along 
North River Road to its intersection with Park Street; thence Northerly and Westerly along Park Street to 
its intersection with North Walnut Street; thence Southerly along North Walnut Street to its intersection 
with Northbound M-3 (Mullett Street); thence Westerly along Northbound M-3 (Mullett Street) to its 
intersection with North Gratiot; thence Northerly along Northbound M-3 (North Gratiot) to its 
intersection with Jones Street; thence Westerly along Jones Street to its intersection with Southbound 
M-3; thence Southerly along Southbound M-3 (North Avenue, South Avenue and South Walnut Street) 
to its intersection with Robertson Street; thence along the Easterly line of Lot 5, Assessor’s Plat No. 6, to 
a point of intersection with the Northerly line of Lot 2 of said Assessor’s Plat No. 6; thence Westerly 
along said Northerly Line of said Lot 2 to a point of intersection with the Easterly line of Lot 6 of said 
Assessor’s Plat No. 6; thence Southerly along said Easterly line of said Lot 6 of Assessor’s Plat No. 6 to a 
point of intersection with the Northerly line of Lot 1, Block 2, Greiners Addition; thence Westerly along 
said Northerly line of said Lot 1, Block 2, Greiners Addition, to its intersection with South Avenue; thence 
Southerly along South Avenue to its intersection with Colonial Court; thence Easterly along Colonial 
Court to the point of beginning.   
 
AND 
 
Assessor’s Plat No. 32, Lots 1 to 20, inclusive, together with Assessor’s Plat No. 25, that part of Lot 1 
lying Southeast of line described as follows:  Commencing at most Westerly corner of Lot 1, Assessor’s 
Plat No. 32; thence South 57 degrees 38’ West 35.02 feet; thence South 30 degrees 44’ East 11.59 feet 
to point of beginning; thence along curve to left concave to Southeast with 254.71 ft radius and long 
chord bearing South 41 degrees 17’21” West 91.51 feet to point of ending.   



 

 

EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item No. 9-C 
 
 
Request City Commission Consideration and Approval of City Manager Appointment 
and Employment Agreement 
 
At the Special Meeting of the Mount Clemens City Commission, held June 9, 2014, the 
Commission voted to offer the position of City Manager to Steven M. Brown, subject to 
negotiation of a mutually acceptable Employment Agreement.  The proposed Employment 
Agreement is attached.  It should be noted Mr. Brown has indicated he will be electing not to 
receive health insurance benefits from the City. 
 
SUBMITTED BY:    Michael J. Murray, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: To appoint Steven M. Brown to the position of 

City Manager and approve the Employment 
Agreement between the City of Mount Clemens 
and Steven M. Brown. 



 

CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this    day of July, 2014, by and 
between the CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as the “City” and/or “Employer”, and STEVEN M. BROWN, hereinafter referred to 
as the “Manager” and/or “Employee”. 
 
W I T N E S S E T H : 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to employ the services of STEVEN M. BROWN as City 
Manager, as provided by the Charter of the City of Mount Clemens; and 
 
 WHEREAS, STEVEN M. BROWN desires to accept employment as City Manager of 
the City of Mount Clemens; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City and the Manager to provide for certain benefits; to 
establish conditions of employment; and to set working conditions for said Manager. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the 
parties agree as follows: 
 
 1. STEVEN M. BROWN shall serve as the City Manager of the City of Mount 

Clemens for an indefinite term and shall have such powers and duties as prescribed 
and permitted by the Charter of the City of Mount Clemens and its ordinances.  
The benefits and salaries prescribed in the following sections shall be effective 
commencing the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
  A. Nothing in this agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with 

the right of the Commission to terminate the services of the Manager at any 
time, subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 3, subparagraph A, 
of this agreement. 

 
  B. Nothing in this agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with 

the right of the Manager to resign at any time from his position with the 
City, subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 3 subparagraph B of 
this agreement. 

    
 2. The Manager shall receive an annual salary of Eighty Seven Thousand Five 

Hundred and No/100ths ($87,500.00) Dollars.  Pay increases and/or decreases 
shall be directly tied to an annual performance review performed by the Mount 
Clemens City Commission as follows: 

 
 



 

  A. The Mount Clemens City Commission shall review and evaluate the 
performance of the Manager at least annually.  Said review and evaluation 
shall be in accordance with specific criteria developed jointly by City and 
Manager.  Said criteria may be added to or deleted from as the Mount 
Clemens City Commission may from time to time determine, in 
consultation with the Manager.  Further, the Mayor and City Commission 
shall provide the Manager with a summary written statement of the findings 
of the Mount Clemens City Commission and provide an adequate 
opportunity for the Manager to discuss his evaluation with the Mount 
Clemens City Commission. 

 
  B. Annually, the Mount Clemens City Commission shall define such goals and 

performance objectives that they determine necessary for the proper 
operation of the City and in the attainment of the Mount Clemens City 
Commissions’ policy objectives and shall further establish a relative priority 
among those various goals and objectives, said goals and objectives to be 
reduced to writing.  They shall generally be attainable within the time 
limitations as specified and the annual operating and capital budgets and 
appropriations provided. 

 
  C. In effecting the provisions of this section, the Mount Clemens City 

Commission and Manager mutually agree to abide by the provisions of 
applicable law. 

 
 3. The Manager is an executive position and, therefore, exempt from the provisions 

of the Fair Labor Standards Act and is not eligible for overtime or compensatory 
time, and shall serve in an at-will capacity and at the pleasure of the City 
Commission. (See Charter Section 53, Code Section 10.082).  It is further agreed 
that the termination of this agreement shall be governed as follows: 

   
  A.  (i) In the event Manager is terminated by the City, the City agrees to pay 

Manager six (6) months regular salary, the same to be paid in monthly 
installments, and to maintain Manager and dependent health care for said 
period as  termination benefits.  In addition thereto, Manager shall also be 
compensated for all accrued vacation and sick leave, the same to be 
prorated over the fiscal year.  The City and Manager will reevaluate the 
number of months’ salary payable upon termination, after the Manager has 
been employed by the City for two years. 

 
(ii) In the event Manager is terminated by City for conviction of committing a 

criminal act or, committing an act of moral turpitude, or committing an act 
of gross malfeasance, Manager shall not be entitled to any of the foregoing 
termination benefits and shall only receive accrued salary, sick and/or 
vacation pay, if any. 



 

(iii) It is further agreed that should Manager become employed while receiving 
termination benefits, he shall promptly notify City of the same and said 
termination benefits shall cease as of the commencement date of such 
employment. 

 
(iv) In the event Manager is terminated for just cause, then in such event, the 

City shall have no obligation to pay the aggregate severance sum 
designated in the foregoing paragraphs and shall only be obligated to pay 
accrued salary, sick and/or vacation pay, if any. 

   
  B. In the event Manager shall resign his position as City Manager, other than 

in circumstances wherein his removal is being sought, or is subject to being 
sought, pursuant to the provision next above, then Manager shall not be 
entitled to any severance compensation, other than payment of accrued 
salary, sick and/or vacation benefits, if any.  Should Manager resign from 
employment, Manager will provide as much advance written notice of the 
termination to the City Commission as is practicable, preferably at least 60 
days. 

  
 4. The Manager is to also receive the following benefits: 
 
  A. The City will pay for professional dues and journal subscriptions pursuant 

to annual budget approval. 
 
  B. The City will pay for a reasonable number of workshops and conferences 

pursuant to annual budget approval. 
 
  C. The City will pay for one membership in a civic club located in the City of 

Mount Clemens. 
 
  D. It is recognized that the Manager must travel during and after normal office 

hours in the performance of City business.  Accordingly, the City shall 
provide the Manager with a Five Hundred and No/100ths ($500.00) 
Dollars per month car allowance.  It is expressly understood and agreed 
that the Manager shall be responsible for purchasing insurance on this 
vehicle in such amounts and with such insurers as are acceptable to the City 
and that, further, the Manager shall be individually responsible for the 
payment of the insurance on the Manager’s vehicle of choice.  

   
  E. Manager’s duties require that he will find it necessary to work at his 

residence after normal working hours and shall have the unrestricted use of 
a laptop computer and software provided, maintained and repaired by 
Employer. 

   



 

F. It is the policy of the Mount Clemens City Commission to encourage the 
Manager to take vacation time.  The City believes that vacation time is 
essential to the maintenance of the Manager’s physical health and mental 
stability.  Accordingly, the City requests that the Manager provide the City 
with a non-binding, tentative vacation schedule as soon as practical.  The 
Manager shall have four (4) weeks of vacation per year calculated from 
Manager’s anniversary date. The vacation must be taken within the year 
entitled or within ninety (90) additional days of the Manager’s anniversary 
date. Unused vacation shall not accumulate beyond the 90-day time period 
without the specific written authorization of the City Commission.  If, 
following the conclusion/expiration of the one (1) year, plus 90-day time 
period contained in this paragraph, the Manager has unused vacation time, 
the Manager shall be compensated for a maximum of five (5) vacation 
days, if same remain unused.   

 
  G. The Manager (“Employee”) shall also receive the following benefits from 

City (“Employer”), approved by the City Commission for Department 
Heads: 

 
   1) Educational Expenses 
 

Manager is entitled to up to One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) Dollars per 
year for reimbursement of books and tuition for courses successfully taken 
and completed at accredited institutions, which directly relate to his job as 
City Manager. Funding is subject to appropriation by the City Commission. 
 
2) Health Benefits 
 

(i) Hospitalization  
 
Employer shall pay the premium for Employee, his/her spouse and eligible 
dependents’ health insurance coverage.  Employer shall have the sole 
discretion to choose the health insurance company and any applicable 
coverages and deductibles.  Each Employee utilizing insurance coverage 
provided by the City shall contribute to the cost of said health care in 
accordance with the amounts listed on Exhibit “A”.  This contribution will 
be made on a bi-weekly basis and will be noted as a deduction on the 
Employee’s paycheck. 
 
Employer shall have the discretion to alter or increase the Employee 
contribution amounts listed in Exhibit “A”. 
 
 



 

If Employee elects not to receive health insurance benefits from the City, 
he/she may receive an annual sum of One Thousand Five Hundred ($1,500) 
Dollars as additional compensation to be paid at the end of each calendar 
year that he/she elects not to receive health insurance benefits. The sum 
will be prorated on a monthly basis for any portion of a calendar year that 
Employee maintains his/her own health insurance. Employee must 
demonstrate proof of his/her own health insurance coverage elsewhere 
prior to qualifying for this additional compensation plan and agrees to sign 
the Employer’s insurance waiver form. 
 
If Employee’s health insurance coverage is terminated, Employee may 
obtain coverage through Employer upon providing proof of loss of his/her 
own health insurance coverage. 
 
If Employee’s spouse is also employed by Employer, the Employer will 
provide coverage to both Employees under one plan. In addition, neither 
spouse will be entitled to the annual option in lieu of health insurance as 
long as both spouses work for the Employer and one opts for health 
insurance coverage.  
 
 (ii) Dental Insurance 
 
Employer shall provide dental insurance to the Employee, his/her spouse 
and eligible dependents.  Employer shall have the sole discretion to choose 
the dental insurance company and any applicable coverages and 
deductibles. 
 
 (iii) Optical Insurance 
 
Employer shall provide optical insurance to the Employee, his/her spouse 
and eligible dependents.  Employer shall have the sole discretion to choose 
the optical insurance company and any applicable coverages and 
deductibles. 
 
3) Life Insurance 
 
After the completion of six months of full-time employment, Employer will 
provide Employee a life insurance policy in the amount of $50,000.  
Employer shall have the sole discretion to choose the life insurance 
company and type of life insurance coverage to be provided. 
 
 
 
 



 

4) Retiree Insurance 
 
Employee shall not be entitled to any form of health insurance at retirement 
unless he/she shall be eligible for pension benefits as described in paragraph 
4(G)(9) of this Agreement and as described in the City of Mount Clemens 
Employees Retirement System Plan.  Employer shall pay the health 
insurance premium for the Employee and his/her spouse when this 
requirement is met.  If Employee was hired on or before June 30, 2008, 
his/her health insurance benefits will be the same or equal to the insurance 
the Employee had at the time of his/her retirement.  If Employee was hired 
after June 30, 2008, Employer shall provide the same health insurance 
coverage upon Employee’s retirement as current City Employees are 
provided.   Accordingly, these benefits may change from time to time 
during Employee’s retirement to reflect any changes in current City 
Employee’s benefits.  This insurance shall be provided to the Employee’s 
spouse, as long as the Employee was married to the spouse at the time of 
retirement.  
 
Upon the Employee and his/her spouse reaching Medicare eligibility, the 
coverage above will be converted to Complimentary 2 + 1 program upon 
60 days advance notice by the Employee. If married members of the same 
family work for Employer, both spouses will be entitled to the same health 
insurance plan. Failure to notify Employer once becoming Medicare eligible 
will result in all premium costs being the responsibility of the retiree and/or 
spouse. The above provision excludes all other dependents and family 
members. 
 
If Employee elects not to receive health insurance benefits from the City, 
he/she may receive an annual sum of One Thousand Five Hundred ($1,500) 
Dollars as additional compensation to be paid at the end of each calendar 
year that he/she elects not to receive health insurance benefits. The sum 
will be prorated on a monthly basis for any portion of a calendar year that 
Employee maintains his/her own health insurance. Employee must 
demonstrate proof of his/her own health insurance coverage elsewhere 
prior to qualifying for this additional compensation and agrees to sign the 
Employer’s insurance waiver form. 
 
If Employee’s health insurance coverage is terminated elsewhere, 
Employee may obtain coverage with Employer upon providing proof of 
loss of his/her own health insurance coverage. 
 
 
 



 

If coverage is afforded by other employment, the above coverage will be 
suspended until the other coverage has ceased. Coverage will be extended 
only as long as the retiree or his/her spouse is collecting a retirement 
income from Employer.  
 
Dental and optical coverages shall cease upon Employee’s retirement or 
termination.  However, Employee may continue to obtain these benefits, if 
eligible, pursuant to the provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget 
Reconciliation Act (COBRA). 
 
Employer shall provide Life insurance in the amount of $5,000 upon 
Employee’s retirement 

 
   5) Personal Business Leave 
 

Department Heads using less than one (1) day of sick leave during a fiscal 
year are entitled to one (1) personal holiday or one day's pay at the rate at 
which it was earned for the coming year. 

 
   6) Holidays 
 

New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Washington's Birthday, Good 
Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, 
Thanksgiving Day, Friday after Thanksgiving, Presidential Election Day, 
Christmas Eve Day (December 24), Christmas Day, New Year's Eve Day 
(December 31) and Employee's Birthday. 

 
   7) Sick Leave 
 
   The Manager shall receive and/or otherwise be entitled to twelve (12) sick 

leave days per year, calculated from Manager’s anniversary date, which is a 
standard benefit received by all department heads. 

 
   Employees who reach the maximum allowable sick leave days and who do 

not use any sick leave during a fiscal year are entitled to convert up to five 
(5) sick leave days to vacation.  Days are not to be carried over to the next 
fiscal year. 

 
   Employees using less than one (1) sick leave day during a fiscal year are 

entitled to one (1) day of personal business (or vacation day) or one day’s 
pay at the rate at which it was earned.  Day is not to be carried over to the 
next fiscal year. 

 



 

   Any employee hired after July 1, 1987, may accumulate a total of one 
hundred (100) sick leave days. Fifty (50%) percent of the accumulated sick 
leave shall be paid to employees hired after July 1, l987, upon retirement. 

 
Those employees who reach maximum allowable accumulation may 
exchange unused sick leave not to exceed five (5) days per year for 
vacation as illustrated below: 

 
An employee hired after July 1, 1987, who reaches the maximum 
allowable sick leave of one hundred (100) days and who does not 
use any sick leave during a fiscal year will be entitled to convert five 
(5) sick leave days to vacation leave for the coming year. An 
employee who has reached the maximum allowable accumulation of 
earned sick leave, and is sick one day would be allowed to have 
four (4) sick leave days converted to vacation days for the ensuing 
year, etc. These converted vacation days may be taken within one 
(1) year of the date earned or they will expire. 

 
Upon death, such payments shall be made to the Manager’s designated 
beneficiaries, or if not designated, to the Manager’s estate. Any such sick 
leave pay shall not be added to the Manager's final average compensation 
for purposes of computing retirement benefits. 

 
   8) Funeral Leave 
 

Department Heads are entitled to use up to four (4) days as funeral leave 
for a death in the immediate family (defined as spouse, child, parent, sibling' 
grandparent, and in-laws of same; also step-parents, step-children). They 
may also use one (1) day to attend the funeral of other relatives (such as 
nieces, nephews, aunts, uncles, etc.). Additional days may be used and 
charged to accumulated vacation or personal business where applicable. 

 
   9) Pension 
 

Department Heads are required to become members of the Employee 
Retirement System as described in the Retirement System Handbook. 
Benefits under the pension plan include the following: 

    
   a) Employer provides a defined benefit plan, which allows Employee 

to retire at the age of 50 with at least 25 years of service or the age 
of 55 with 10 years of service. Participation in the retirement 
program is mandatory and contribution shall be 5.3% percent of the 
Employee’s gross wage. 

 



 

   b) Employees hired prior to July 1, 1998 will have a pension factor of 
2.25% for the first 25 year of service plus 2.0% multiplied by years 
of service in excess of 25 years. 

 
   c) Upon retirement, if Employee was hired before July 1, 1987, 

Employer will pay Employee for unused sick leave, at a rate of 
seventy five (75%) percent to a maximum of 170 days.  Upon 
Employee’s death, Employer shall make such payments to 
Employee’s designated beneficiaries, or his/her estate, if not 
designated.  Any such pay shall be added to the Employee’s final 
average compensation for purposes of computing retirement 
benefits. 

 
   d) Employees hired on or after July 1, 1998 will have a pension factor 

2.25% for the first 25 years of service plus 1.0% multiplied by years 
of service in excess of 25 years. 

 
   e) The computation of final average compensation (FAC) for 

Employees hired after July 1, 1987 and before July 1, 2007, will be 
comprised of base wages only.  No payment of overtime, unused 
vacation, compensatory, longevity or sick time will be included in 
the computation of FAC.  

 
   f) Deferred Retirement – 10 or more years of service at age 55 for 

general members and 50 for police and fire members (as approved 
by City Commission on September 8, 1986), or 25 or more years of 
service at age 50 for general (as approved by City Commission on 
August 3, 1998). 

 
    The amount is the same as regular retirement, but based upon 

service, final average compensation and benefit formula at 
termination.  Benefit is forfeited upon withdrawal of all or part of 
employee’s accumulated contributions. 

 
    The vesting period is ten (10) years for deferred retirement.  If 

employment is terminated before the ten (10) year period, the 
Employee contribution is refunded. 

 
   g) The City reserves the right to adopt a 401(a) defined contribution 

plan in place of the present defined benefit plan established by 
Charter. The adoption of a defined contribution plan will be solely 
in the discretion of the City.  

 
    



 

 5. Section 457, Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan 
 

  The City agrees to execute all documents necessary to provide for participation in 
a Section 457, non-qualified deferred compensation plan for Manager, in addition 
to participation by Manager in City’s Retirement System.  In addition to the base 
salary to be paid by City to Manager, the City agrees to an annual contribution of 
five (5%) of Manager’s gross annual salary to a Section 457 Plan on behalf of 
Manager.  Said contribution shall be payable in equal proportionate amounts each 
pay period.  Manager’s participation in the Section 457 Plan shall allow for the 
transfer of Manager’s account balance, plus earnings, to another Section 457 Plan 
sponsored by a successor employer of Manager following Manager’s resignation 
or termination of employment. 
 

  The parties shall fully disclose to each other the financial impact of any amendment 
to the terms of Manager’s retirement benefit.  

 
6. Return of Employer’s Property 

 
  All documents and tangible items, including ledgers, computer disks and other 

forms of information storage generated or obtained by Manager as a result of his 
employment, are and shall remain the property of the City.  Upon termination of 
the Manager’s employment for any reason, the Manager shall deliver to the City all 
files and records of any nature which are within Manager’s possession or control 
and which relate in any manner to the Manager’s employment with the City, 
without retaining any copies.  

 
  Manager specifically agrees that at the termination of his employment for any 

reason, he will not: 
 
   (a) delete or alter the City’s documents; 
   (b) destroy or throw away material; 
   (c) password protect, encrypt or reformat any documents; 
   (d) download information or forward electronic files from City’s  

  computer system, including by remote access; or 
   (e) access City’s computer system, e-mail or voice mail, including  

  by remote access and will not solicit any other City personnel or  
  third party to do so. 

   
 7. Indemnification 
 
  In addition to any indemnification that is required under state and local law, the 

City shall defend, save harmless and indemnify the Manager against tort, 
professional liability claims or demands or other legal action arising out of an 
alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of the Manager’s duties.  The 



 

Manager expressly understands and agrees that the City shall not be responsible for 
the defense of any legal actions and/or judgments rendered against the Manager 
and/or the City as they relate to intentional torts and/or actions taken by the 
Manager as they relate to matters outside of the performance of the Manager’s 
duties as the City Manager.  

 
 8. Severance 
 
  If any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable, this Agreement shall 

be considered divisible as to such provision and the remainder of this Agreement 
shall be valid and binding as though such provision were originally excluded.  Any 
court constructing this Agreement which finds that provision of an obligation of 
Manager is unenforceable because it is unreasonable shall reform such provision to 
make it reasonable and enforceable. 

 
  9.  Manager’s Representations 
 
  Manager represents and warrants that the academic background, the work 

experience and other information contained in Manager’s resumes and job 
application and all information submitted by Manager to the City for City’s 
evaluation of Manager’s possible employment and/or promotion(s) with City are 
true and correct, accurate and complete. 

 
 10. Entire Agreement and Amendment 
 
  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties as to the Manager’s 

employment with the City.  All other prior agreements, representations, terms and 
conditions are superseded by this Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended 
only by a written document signed by both parties or at the discretion of the City 
Commission.  The Manager is also bound by the policies and procedures found in 
the City of Mount Clemens’ Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual.  The City 
reserves the right to change benefits, terms, policies and/or procedures at any time 
without notice.  

 
 11. Arbitration, Venue and Governing Law 
 

  Any and all disputes under this agreement shall be submitted to binding arbitration 
pursuant to labor arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association.  
Michigan courts may enter judgment upon and enforce any award entered by the 
arbitrator within its authority. 
 

   
 



 

  Michigan law shall govern this agreement and the sole and exclusive remedy under 
this agreement shall be monetary damages for any alleged breach.  No equitable 
relief of any kind, including reinstatement, may be granted for any violation of this 
agreement, except as necessary to pay a monetary award granted pursuant to 
binding arbitration. 
 

  The scope of the arbitrator’s authority is limited exclusively to the issue of whether 
a breach of contract occurred and, if so, the measure of monetary damages, which 
shall not be greater than the value of the salary and benefits remaining at the time 
of the alleged breach.  The arbitrator has no authority to reinstate in the event of a 
termination of employment. 

 
  The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the Manager and 

City pursuant to rules of the American Arbitration Association unless assessed 
differently by the arbitrator. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals the day 
and year first above written. 
       CITY/ EMPLOYER: 
 
       CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 
 
 
 
       By:_________________________________ 
           Barb Dempsey, Mayor 
 
 
 
       By:_________________________________ 
                  Lynne Kennedy, City Clerk 
     
 
       MANAGER/ EMPLOYEE: 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
        STEVEN M. BROWN 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Certification 
 
I, Lynne Kennedy, Clerk of the City of Mount Clemens, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
agreement was adopted by a vote of the City Commission of the City of Mount Clemens on the 
_____ day of ___________, 2014, at a regular City Commission Meeting. 
 
 
        

____________________________________ 
       Lynne Kennedy, City Clerk 
       City of Mount Clemens 



EXHIBIT A 
 
 
Employee Health Care Benefit Contribution Amounts: 
 
Effective July 1, 2012, pursuant to PA 152 of 2011, the City has opted to elect the “hard cap” 
option as it relates to health insurance contribution by an employee.  The insurance premiums 
over and above the cap will be the responsibility of the employee.  This cap amount will be 
reviewed by the State Treasury on an annual basis and is subject to change, which in turn will 
affect the employee contribution amount. 
 
Effective July 1, 2012, the health insurance coverage shall be Blue Cross Blue Shield 
Community Blues PPO 1 with a $10/$40 deductible for prescription drugs or Blue Cross Blue 
Shield Community Blues PPO 4 with a $10/$40 deductible for prescription drugs.  During the 
City’s annual open enrollment period, employee may select either plan. 



EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item No. 9-D 
 
 
Request Approval of a One-Year Commitment with Shelbyvision Presents, LLC, for 
Producing an Independence Day Event in Mount Clemens from June 26 through 
June 28, 2015 
 
Shelbyvision Presents, LLC, is requesting a one-year commitment from the City of 
Mount Clemens for use of the downtown for a new event currently titled “Summer Magic 
Festival”. 
 
The event would take place from June 26 through June 28, 2015, primarily on Macomb 
Place between Main Street and Southbound Gratiot and within the Roskopp Parking Lot. 
 
As with similar events in the past, Administration is requesting that the City’s 
commitment be subject to the City Manager’s Office negotiating a Special Events Permit 
(a draft of which is enclosed for your information) with the organizer detailing the rights 
and responsibilities of both parties, with the City retaining the right to modify the terms 
and conditions contained therein. 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Brian L. Tingley 
     Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve the request from Shelbyvision Presents, 

LLC, for a one-year commitment to produce an 
annual Independence Day event on June 26 through 
June 28, 2015, subject to the City Manager’s Office 
and Shelbyvision Presents, LLC, negotiating a 
Special Events Permit. 











DRAFT

SPECIAL EVENTS PERMIT FOR CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 
STREETS AND GROUNDS 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT made this _____ day of _________, 20___, between 
the CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, of One 
Crocker Boulevard, Mount Clemens, Michigan  48043, hereinafter referred to as 
the “City”, and _______________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________,
hereinafter referred to as “Permittee”. 
 
Permittee shall comply with all sections of this permit designated as follows: 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
1) Description:    The City in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants 
and agreements to be performed by Permittee, does hereby grant to Permittee 
permission to use and occupy the following “Premises”:    
 
      As described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof 
   by reference. 
 
2) Term.     The term of this Permit shall be:  
 
 
 
 
 In addition thereto, Permittee shall have the use and occupancy for the set up 
 and staging of:  
 
 
 
 
3) Acceptance of Premises.     Permittee has examined and is satisfied with the 
physical condition of the premises, and accepts the premises in their “as is” 
condition. 
 
4) Use. Permittee may use and occupy the premises for:   
 
   ____________________________________(event title) 

as presented to and approved by the Mount Clemens  
City Commission on __________________, 20____ 

 

 

 

 

X



DRAFT

 2

and for no other reason.  The use and occupancy  shall only be under Permittee’s 
name or any assume dame of Permittee.  Permittee shall not use or knowingly 
allow any part of the premises to be used for unlawful purpose.  In the event of any 
violation of this provision the CITY at its sole discretion may terminate this Permit 
and expel Permittee from the premises.  Permittee waives, releases and 
relinquishes all claims of right or interest in the premises. 
 
5) Clean-up, Repair, Maintenance and Damage.  Permittee shall be solely 
responsible for clean-up of the premises and the repair expense for any damage 
caused to the premises throughout the term  of this Permit.  Permittee shall, at the 
direction of the City, provide a sufficient number of dumpsters and trash collection 
cans for the event.  Permittee will be responsible to reimburse the City for out-of-
pocket costs (i.e. tipping fee) associated with trash removal and disposal.   
 
 Permittee shall take good care of and shall keep the premises, including its 
fixtures and furnishings, in a clean, safe, orderly and sanitary condition, including 
but not limited to, keeping all sidewalks, parking areas, alleys, roadways and 
facilities/areas which are a part of the premises, neat and clean; guarding all 
defects on the premises which may be a hazard to the general public and business 
invitees; and promptly removing all debris or any other material which may be a 
hazard to the general public and business invitees.  Permittee shall promptly make 
all repairs which are required to maintain the premises in the condition which 
existed upon the commencement of its actual use and occupancy.  Permittee shall 
not be required to repair plumbing and electrical components of the premises for 
damages which are not caused by the Permitteee, its guests or invitees.  At the 
termination of this Permit, Permittee shall yield and deliver up the premises in like 
condition, reasonable use and wear thereof and damage by the elements exempted. 
 
6) Clean-up and Damage Bond. Permittee shall deposit with the City Clerk a 
clean-up and damage bond in the form of cash or certified check payable to the 
City, as follows:  low hazard $1,000.00; medium hazard $5,000.00; high hazard 
$10,000.00.  This will correlate with the type of insurance required.  The bond 
should be deposited with the City Clerk at the time the application is submitted, 
when possible but is required prior to the permit being presented to the City 
Commission for approval.  The bond shall be returned to Permittee without 
interest, within Seven (7) days after the expiration of permit if the Permittee has 
fully performed restoration and clean-up of the premises to an “as is” or better 
condition as prior to the event.  Should Permittee fail to restore and clean the 
premises in satisfactory condition, the City may retain the clean-up and damage 
bond and if the amount thereof is insufficient, pursue all other remedies. 
 
 

scardaris
Rectangle



DRAFT

 3

 
7) Electrical Permits. For any event, carnival or fair connecting to or 
modifying an existing electrical source or service, Permittee covenants and agrees 
to designate a licensed electrical contractor and secure an electrical permit in 
compliance under Article 525 of the current National Electric Code.  An electrical 
permit shall be obtained one week prior to the event and a copy shall be provided 
to the City Manager’s office.  Inspections shall be requested by the electrical 
contractor prior to the opening of the event, or use of the electrical service. 
 
8) All Utilities.      The City agrees to allow Permittee to use existing electrical 
and water services for food and beverage concessions, lighting and audio 
equipment.  However, the City shall not be responsible for any damages 
whatsoever due to any interruption in electrical, water or other services, and 
Permittee shall pay the applicable water hydrant fees to City, as well as any and all 
fees or costs for installation and maintenance of backflow preventers.  
  
 There shall be no modification or alteration of the City’s electrical supply 
boxes or other equipment, unless prior approval has been obtained from the City 
and any work is approved by the City’s electrical inspector.  All such work must be 
done by a licensed electrical contractor at Permittee’s sole expense. 
 
9) Reimbursement of Utility Costs. Permittee shall reimburse the City for 
the costs of electric, water and other utility services utilized by the Permittee, its 
vendees and concessionaires. 
 
10) Signs.      Permittee shall be entitled at Permittee’s own expense, to install 
signs, flags and banners along the premises.  All signs, flags and banners outside 
the designated premises shall be approved by the City Community Development 
Department. 
 
11) Insurances.      CERTIFICATES OR OTHER EVIDENCE OF ALL 
REQUIRED COVERAGES AND ENDORSEMENTS MUST BE FILED WITH 
THE CITY CLERK AT LEAST SEVEN (7) DAYS BEFORE THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF THE EVENT. 
 
12) General Liability.     Permittee shall carry comprehensive general liability 
insurance, including premises and all operations, through companies licensed and 
admitted to do business in Michigan, which shall provide protection from all 
claims of damage or injury, including death, to persons and property which may 
arise out of, result from or be caused by Permittees’s use or occupancy of the 
premises or its operations conducted thereon, with occurrence and aggregate limits 
of not less than the amount set forth below: 

 

scardaris
Rectangle



DRAFT

 4

 
 Required Limits Comprehensive General Liability 
 
 ______  Not less than $10,000,000.00, per occurrence (Special Hazard) 
 ______   Not less than $  5,000,000.00, per occurrence (High Hazard) 
 ______  Not less than $  2,000,000.00, per occurrence (Medium Hazard) 
 ______  Not less than $  1,000,000.00, per occurrence (Low Hazard) 
 
THE CITY, THE MOUNT CLEMENS DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY, AND THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, A 
MICHIGAN NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, THEIR RESPECTIVE 
OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, ELECTED OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES, SHALL 
BE NAMED AS “ADDITIONAL INSURED” AND THIS COVERAGE SHALL 
BE ENDORSED ON THE CERTIFICATE AND POLICY “AS BEING 
PRIMARY TO THE CITY, AND NOT EXCESS OF ANY OTHER 
INSURANCE, SIMILAR PROTECTION (E.G. RISK MANAGEMENT 
ASSOCIATION) OR ANY OTHER VALID, APPLICABLE, OR 
COLLECTABLE INSURANCE OR SELF-INSURANCE WHICH IS OR MAY 
BE AVAILABLE TO OR CARRIED BY THE CITY.” 
 
 Permittee shall, upon the issuance of this Permit, provide the City with a 
certificate or other evidence of all required coverages, including those set forth 
below.  The certificate or other evidence of coverage shall provide a ten (10) day 
written notice to the City in the event of cancellation or material changes in the 
coverage.   
 
 Liquor Liability 
  
 Permittee or its designee (for example, a local service club) shall carry liquor 
liability insurance with combined limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 insuring for 
any and all damage and liability which may be caused by, related to or arise out of 
the sale, furnishing, giving, distribution or consumption of alcoholic beverages on 
the premises.   
 
THE CITY, THE MOUNT CLEMENS DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY, AND THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, A 
MICHIGAN NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, THEIR RESPECTIVE 
OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, ELECTED OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES, SHALL 
BE NAMED AS “ADDITIONAL INSURED” AND THIS COVERAGE SHALL 
BE ENDORSED ON THE CERTIFICATE AND POLICY “AS BEING 
PRIMARY TO THE CITY, AND NOT EXCESS OF ANY OTHER 
INSURANCE, SIMILAR PROTECTION (E.G. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

scardaris
Rectangle



DRAFT

 5

ASSOCIATION) OR ANY OTHER VALID, APPLICABLE, OR 
COLLECTABLE INSURANCE OR SELF-INSURANCE WHICH IS OR MAY 
BE AVAILABLE TO OR CARRIED BY THE CITY.” 
 
 Motor Vehicle Liability 
 
 Permittee shall also obtain and maintain vehicle liability coverage for all 
owned and hired motor vehicles which may be operated, maintained or used on the 
premises.  Minimum combined limits of $500,000. shall be maintained. 
 
 
 Food 
 
 Permittee or its designee shall carry products and completed operations 
coverage insurance with combined limits of not less than $500,000. insuring for 
any and all damage and liability which may be caused by, related to or arise out of 
the sale, furnishing, giving, distribution or consumption of food on the premises. 
 
13) Indemnity.   Permittee covenants and agrees to indemnify, protect, defend 
and save the City, the Mount Clemens Downtown Development Authority, and the 
Downtown Development Committee, Inc., a Michigan Non-Profit Corporation, 
their respective officers, directors, elected officials and employees, harmless from 
any claim, action or suit for any loss, liability and damages that may be asserted or 
levied against the premises or said parties, in whole or in part by reason of 
Permittee’s acts or omissions, or by its use or occupancy of, or its operations on the 
premises, or by reason of any other person on the premises by contract, invitation 
or license, including any expenses, costs and attorney fees incurred in connection 
with any such claim, action or suit.  In the event of any incident occurring on the 
premises resulting in any personal injury, including death, to any person, Permittee 
shall give notice to the City within Twelve (12) hours after the occurrence thereof 
or after Permittee learns of such occurrence. 
 
 The indemnify, defense and hold harmless requirements shall include and 
extend to bodily injury to any person or injury to any property of Permittee, its 
employees and all persons on the premises by contract, invitation or consent. 
 
 All property kept, stored or maintained in the premises shall be so kept, 
stored or maintained at the risk of Permittee only.   
 
 
 
 

scardaris
Rectangle



DRAFT

 6

 
14) Other Insurance.  If Permittee employs any independent contractor 
or others for any purpose whatsoever in relation to its use or occupancy of the 
premises, or for any operations or maintenance connected therewith, Permittee 
shall obtain and maintain, or cause said independent contractor to obtain and 
maintain, policies of workers compensation insurance and such other liability 
insurance of the types and in the amounts outlined above which will provide 
coverage to the City, the Mount Clemens Downtown Development Authority, and 
the Downtown Development Committee, Inc., a Michigan Non-Profit Corporation, 
their respective officers, directors, elected officials and employees, for all claims 
which may arise out of, result from or be caused by that work. 
 
15) Right of Inspection and Access.  The City may enter the 
premises at any time to examine, inspect and to do whatever the City may deem 
necessary or desirable to determine compliance with or to enforce the terms of this 
Permit.  Mount Clemens law, fire and other enforcement personnel shall have 
unrestricted access to the premises at all times. 
 
16) Compliance with Rules and Regulations. Permittee shall abide by all 
laws, statutes, ordinances, governmental orders, rules and regulations which 
control or in any manner affect or relate to the use or occupancy of the premises, or 
operations conducted thereon. 
 
17) Fencing. Permittee shall be allowed to use any fencing that the City has 
in its possession that is not in use by the City. 
 
18) Concessions. Permittee or its designees/vendors shall be allowed to sell 
assorted food and beverage items and to run concession stands during the term of 
this Permit.  Permittee or its designee shall obtain all necessary licenses and/or 
permits from the appropriate state, county or city governmental authorities.  
Permittee shall submit all license applications and fees to the City Clerk at least ten 
(10) business days prior to the event.  Permittee shall notify and require the 
following of all food concessionaires: 
 
 (1)   A fire extinguisher shall be present in all tents and in all areas and  
  enclosures used for cooking. 
 
  (a)  The fire extinguisher shall be an ABC type, a minimum of 5  
         pounds. 
  (b)  Proof that the fire extinguisher has been serviced within the last                
          year. 

scardaris
Rectangle



DRAFT

 7

  (c) The fire extinguisher shall be tagged with the date and service  
        provider. 
  (d)  If purchased within the last year, a sales slip must be provided. 
 
 (2) All propane tanks used for cooking shall be secured so as to prevent  
  tipping.  The tanks shall be remote from congested areas. 
 
 (3) Only approved, heavy duty extension cords shall be used and all  
  electrical connections shall be protected. 
 
If a designee/vendor fails to comply with these requirements, they will not be 
permitted to participate in the event. 
 
19) Alcoholic Beverages. Permittee or its designee shall be allowed to sell 
and/or furnish beer and/or wine on the premises during the term of this Permit as 
set forth in paragraph 2 hereof, subject to approval of the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission.  The sale, furnishing and consumption of alcoholic beverages is 
specifically conditioned upon Permittee or its designee obtaining and maintaining 
liquor liability insurance as required in Paragraph 11 above and all approvals from 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
20) Admission. Permittee may charge admission to the general public to enter 
premises.  Entry shall not be denied to any individual based upon race, sex, age, 
creed or national origin. 
 
21) Police and Fire Protection. Permittee shall fully reimburse the City at 
overtime and fringe benefit rates for all additional police and/or fire officers who 
are assigned to the premises, or the vicinity thereof, because of the use or 
occupancy thereof by Permittee. 
 
22) Parking and Traffic. Permittee shall prohibit all motor vehicles in or on 
the premises and shall cause all streets and alleys to be properly barricaded and 
signed.  All motor vehicles shall be operated only on established roads and parked 
in designated areas.  All fire lanes and no parking zones shall be maintained during 
the event. 
 
23) Health and Sanitation Facilities.  Permittee shall furnish and 
maintain a sufficient number of portable bathrooms and washing facilities, at 
Permittee’s expense.  Each bank or group of portable restrooms shall have a 
minimum of one (1) barrier free/ADA compliant restrooms.  A bank or group 
consists of ten (10) or less portable restrooms. 
 

 

scardaris
Rectangle



DRAFT

 8

 
24) Compliance with Permittee’s Representations.  Permittee shall fully 
comply with all representations and promises set forth in its Proposal to the Mount 
Clemens City Commission for this Special Events Permit. 
 
25) Equipment and Services.   The City agrees to have the following 
equipment and services available during the term of this Permit: 
 
26) Security. It shall be Permittee’s sole responsibility to provide security 
throughout the term of the event.  The local policing authority shall establish the 
number of security personnel whom Permittee shall be required to have on the 
premises.  The security shall be provided by a licensed and certified security 
agency, whose members shall be in identifiable uniforms. 
 
27) Bleachers. Permittee shall be solely responsible for the construction and/or 
removal of any bleachers, chairs, tables, booths, fencing, tents or structures used 
during the course of the event. 
 
28) Reimbursement of Other Costs. Permittee shall reimburse the City for 
all costs relating to the use of barricades, fencing, bleachers and other facilities and 
equipment provided by the City.  Permittee on behalf of the organization, agrees to 
reimburse the City of Mount Clemens and/or the Mount Clemens Downtown 
Development Authority, and the Downtown Development Committee, Inc., a 
Michigan Non-Profit Corporation, for its “out of pocket” expenses which includes 
but is not limited to overtime of City employees and trash disposal tipping fees at 
landfills.  City staff is readily accessible to discuss out-of-pocket expense estimates 
and ways to reduce these costs.  All City invoices sent to organizations for 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket costs are due within thirty (30) days from the 
event.  
 
29) Tents.     All tents or air supported structures used during the term of this 
permit shall comply with Section 31 of the Michigan Building Code and Section 
24 of the International Fire Code.  Material of all tents shall be of non-combustible 
material or flame resistant material conforming to NFPA 701, treated in an 
approved manner to render the material flame resistant.  Appropriate 
documentation must be presented to any Building Code Enforcement Officer, Fire 
Official or other Code Official upon request.  A copy shall also be retained on the 
premises where the tent is located.  The documentation must attest to the following 
information relative to the flame resistance of the fabric: 
 
 (1) Name and address of the owners of the tent or air supported structure. 
 (2) Date the fabric was last treated with flame resistant solution. 

scardaris
Rectangle



DRAFT

 9

 (3) Trade name of kind of chemical used in treatment. 
 (4) Name of person or firm treating material. 
 (5) Name of testing agency and test standard by which the fabric was  
  treated. 
 
If more than one tent or air supported structure is located on the premises a copy of 
all required documentation for each tent or structure shall be kept at a central 
location on the premises.  The use of gasoline, gas, charcoal or any other cooking 
devices or any unapproved flame inside or within 20 feet of a tent or other air 
supported structure is strictly prohibited. 
 
30) Fire.  
 
 (a) No open flames or explosives shall be permitted for decoration, 
display or use without permission from the City Fire Department. 
 (b) All seating capacity and room arrangements shall be approved by the 
City Fire Department. 
 (c) An access lane, a minimum of eleven (11) feet wide shall be 
maintained leading into and out of the event so that emergency vehicles have 
access in case of an emergency. 
 (d) Barricades or any type of obstruction which could impede or interfere 
with fire suppression forces shall not be erected. 
 
31) Music. Permittee shall be solely responsible for obtaining the 
appropriate license to present any music covered by copyright, whether by live 
performance, recorded music or retransmission of radio and/or television 
broadcast.  The Permittee covenants and agrees to indemnify, protect, defend and 
save the City, the Mount Clemens Downtown Development Authority, and the 
Downtown Development Committee, Inc., a Michigan Non-Profit Corporation, 
their respective officers, directors, elected officials and employees, harmless from 
any claim, action or suit or for any loss, liability and damages that may be asserted 
or levied against said parties, based in whole or in part upon a claim of copyright 
infringement.   
 
32) Other Conditions/Requirements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

scardaris
Rectangle



DRAFT

 10

 
33) Cancellation or Modification.      It is understood and agreed that ten (10) 
days advance written notice of any cancellation, reduction and/or material changes 
in the proposed agenda will be provided to the City Manager, City of Mount 
Clemens, at One Crocker Boulevard, Mount Clemens, Michigan  48043. 
 
34) Duplicate Original Copies. This Permit is executed in duplicate original 
copies, one of which shall be retained by the City and one by Permittee, each of 
which shall be deemed to be an original, but each of which shall be construed as 
one document. 
 
35) Governing Law. This Permit and the rights of the parties hereunder shall 
be governed by, interpreted and in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Michigan. 
 
36) Paragraph Headings. The paragraph headings appearing in this Permit 
have been inserted for the purpose of convenience and ready reference.  They do 
not purport to, and shall not be deemed to define, limit or extend the scope or 
intent of the paragraphs to which they appertain. 
 
37) Entire Agreement. This Permit represents the entire agreement of the 
parties and shall be deemed to be an integrated agreement containing all prior and 
contemporaneous oral and written agreements between the parties hereto, and shall 
not be modified in any part, except in a writing signed by all parties. 
 
IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PERMITTEE TO DESIGNATE 
A SPECIFIC LOCATION ON THE PREMISES AS ITS “HEADQUARTERS” 
AND TO HAVE AVAILABLE AT THAT LOCATION, AT ALL TIMES THE 
PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AND DURING SET UP OR 
CONSTRUCTION, AT LEAST ONE PERSON WHO HAS THE KNOWLEDGE 
AND AUTHORITY TO REPRESENT PERMITTEE CONCERNING ALL 
ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS PERMIT.  
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS SECTION OR ANY OTHER TERM OF 
THIS PERMIT SHALL BE CAUSE FOR THE CITY MANAGER, POLICE OR 
FIRE OFFICIAL, TO IMMEDIATELY REVOKE THIS SPECIAL EVENTS 
PERMIT AND TO REQUIRE PERMITTEE TO VACATE THE PREMISES. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

scardaris
Rectangle



DRAFT

 11

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and 
seals the day and year first above written. 
 
CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS,  ______________________________ 
       ______________________________ 
 
By:___________________________  “Permittee”   
Douglas Anderson          
Its:  City Manager 
               By:___________________________ 
        
       Its:  ____________________ 
 
 
 

scardaris
Rectangle

scardaris
Rectangle



 

 

EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item No. 9-E 
 
 
Adoption of a Resolution Opposing the Legalization of Marijuana for General Use 
in Macomb County Communities 
 
The Charter Township of Clinton has requested that Macomb County Communities 
consider adopting a resolution opposing the legalization of marijuana for general use in 
Macomb County communities.  The resolution does not relate to the use of marijuana 
approved for medical purposes in compliance with current state law. 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Robert J. Bruner, Interim City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: To adopt the attached resolution opposing the 

legalization of marijuana for general use in 
Macomb County Communities. 



RESOLUTION OPPOSING THE LEGALIZATION OF MARIJUANA 
FOR GENERAL USE IN MACOMB COUNTY COMMUNITIES 

 
(This resolution does not relate to the use of marijuana approved for medical purposes in 

compliance with current state law.) 
 

 
 WHEREAS, ballot proposals to decriminalize (remove legal penalties) for general marijuana use 
are being considered in 12 Michigan communities, including the City of Utica in Macomb County, this 
year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is significant evidence demonstrating that marijuana has a profoundly 
negative impact on our youth, particularly teenagers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Macomb County youth report a decreased perception of risk of marijuana use and 
the Macomb County Aggregate Michigan Profile for Healthy Youth Survey reports in 2012 that only 56% 
of Macomb County youth surveyed thought marijuana use was risky, compared to 62% in 2010; and  
 
 WHEREAS, The National Institute on Drug Abuse reports that one in six teens that use 
marijuana become addicted; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Monitoring the Future, 2013 reports in states that have legalized medical 
marijuana, about one-third of 12th graders report access to another person’s medical marijuana supply; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, MATFORCE, the Yavapai County Substance Abuse Coalition reports that schools 
in Colorado, a state which has legalized medical and recreational marijuana use, drug-related expulsions 
spiked 45% between 2008 and 2012; and 
 
 WHEREAS, National Highway Traffic Association reports that driving under the influence of 
marijuana is associated with an increased risk of car crashes, especially fatal crashes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the University of Colorado, Denver reports that in the state of Colorado, which has 
legalized marijuana and general marijuana use, marijuana-impaired drivers and fatalities are on the rise 
and between 2006 and 2011, traffic fatalities with drivers testing positive for just marijuana increased 
114%; and 

 
WHEREAS, general marijuana use and possession is not permitted by federal and state law; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the ordinance being proposed to decriminalize marijuana use in Utica, Michigan, 
does not address the actual usage of marijuana (smoking, eating, vaporizing), the exact quantity of the 
drug permitted, the sale of marijuana, taxation, quality/potency of the drug, availability of edible 
products, driving under the influence or location of use (what constitutes private property); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is not possible to foresee and mitigate all the associated risks and impact to our 
communities through the decriminalization or legalization of marijuana for general use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mount Clemens recognizes the need to educate all sectors of our community 
regarding the dangers of marijuana use. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Mount Clemens City Commission opposes the 
decriminalization of marijuana and its use other than for recognized medical  purposes; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Mount Clemens City Commission encourages other 
Macomb County communities to oppose the decriminalization of marijuana or legalization of marijuana 
for general use including the adoption of similar resolutions in opposition to the decriminalization or 
legalization of marijuana; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED Mount Clemens acknowledges the Chippewa Valley Coalition 

for Youth and Families conducting a research-based campaign to educate all sectors of the community 
about the consequences of marijuana use in an effort to keep our youth and community safe; and 

 
 IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution, having been adopted by the Mount Clemens 
City Commission, be announced to the public and made a permanent part of the record of Mount 
Clemens. 
 
 
Adopted:  July 7, 2014 
     
  
      CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, 
      a Michigan Municipal Corporation, 
      
 
 
              By:____________________________________ 
        Barb Dempsey, Mayor 
 
 
 
               By:___________________________________ 
       Lynne Kennedy, City Clerk 



Township 

Robed J.  Cannon 
Su~ewisor 

EIizaIbefh VogeI 
Assistant to Supervisor 

CIVIC CENTER 
40700 Romeo Plank Road 

Clinton Twp., MI 48038-2900 
Phone: (586) 286-8000 

Fax: (586) 228-1770 

17 June 2014 

To: All Elected Officials in Macomb County 

As you may have already read in the June 17 issue of the Macomb Daily, 
the Clinton Township Board of Trustees passed a resolution opposing 
the legalization of marijuana for general use in Macomb County 
communities. 

This resolution does not relate to the use of marijuana approved for 
medical purposes in compliance with current state law. 

I proposed this resolution to our Board because ballot proposals to 
decriminalize marijuana may be considered in 12 Michigan communities 
this year, including the City of Utica in Macomb County. Yet there is a 
plethora of evidence to support negative consequences of general 
marijuana use, particularly on the youth in our communities. 

What is disturbing to me is the vague ballot language for the ordinance 
change in Utica, MI. It is precisely this vague language that would make 
it extremely difficult for law enforcement to do their jobs effectively. 
Additionally, I found that very few people, including elected officials, 
were aware of these ballot proposals. 

The movement to decriminalize marijuana is moving at an accelerated 
pace. Communities need to be informed of the potential shortfalls in 
moving too quickly to decriminalize marijuana, and adequately prepare 
their local officials about these ballot initiatives and their language. 

Therefore, I encourage you, our neighbors in Macomb County, to adopt 
similar resolutions. You may feel free to use some or all of the language 
in this document. 

Please find the resolution attached, as well as a copy of the article from 
today's Macomb Daily. Please do not hesitate to contact my office with 
any questions. Another excellent resource is Charlene McGunn, PhD., 
with the Chippewa Valley Coalition for Youth and Families. Her email 
is cmcgunn@cvs. k12.mi.u~ 

Robert  on 
Township Supervisor 



EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item No. 9-F 
 
 

APPROVE PURCHASES AND PAYMENTS 
 

VENDOR 
(PURCHASES) 

DESCRIPTION FUND/ 
DEPARTMENT/ 
APPROPRIATION 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

AMOUNT CURRENT 
BALANCE 

1.Detroit Elevator 
   2121 Burdette 
   Ferndale, MI 48220 

Estimated annual 
Requirement of  
Elevator inspections 
And maintenance. 

Various Various $10,512.00/ 
3 years + 
Tests and 
Repairs as 
Required. 

Various 

2. PVS Technologies, Inc. 
   10900 Harper Avenue 
   Detroit, MI 48213 

Estimated annual 
Requirement of  
Ferric Chloride. 

Sewer-Utilities Fund/ 
Operation of Plant/ 
Chemicals 

590-53708-743000 $  9,854.00- 
$12,128.00 

$15,000.00 

3.Litho Printing 
   21541 Gratiot Avenue 
   Eastpointe, MI 48021 

Parking Ticket 
Rolls (500). 

Parking System Fund/ 
Printing and Binding 

585-54600-904000 $3,210.00 $4,000.00 

 



 
VENDOR 
(INVOICES) 

DESCRIPTION FUND/ 
DEPARTMENT/ 
APPROPRIATION 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

AMOUNT CURRENT 
BALANCE 

1.Jett Pump & Valve, LLC 
   4770 Pontiac Lake Road 
   Waterford, MI 48328 

Emergency repair to  
Our Wemco Pump. 

Sewer-Utilities Fund/ 
Operation of Plant/ 
Contractual Services 

590-53708-818000 $7,158.00 $80,000.00 

2. Michigan Municipal League 
   P.O. Box 7409 
   Ann Arbor, MI 48107 

Michigan  
Municipal League 
Membership  
Renewal. 

General Fund/ 
Community  
Promotions/ 
Memberships  
And Dues 

101-17220-803000 $6,732.00 $10,000.00 

3.The Oscar W. Larson Company 
   10100 Dixie Highway 
   Clarkston, MI 48348 

Tank #2 repairs at 
The Department of 
Public Services 

Motor Pool Fund/ 
Department of Public 
Services/ 
Fuel and Lubes 

661-44100-751000 $2,000.00 $3,560.49 
(2013-2014 

Fiscal Year) 

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Marilyn Dluge, Finance Director/Treasurer 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve purchases and payment of invoices as presented. 



CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS  
 

Tabulation of sealed bids received and opened on Tuesday, June 24, 2014, for our estimated annual requirement of elevator maintenance services for a three-year period: 
 
# BIDDER LOCATION OIL & GREASE  

ONLY/ 
MONTH 

X 3  
YEARS 

OIL & GREASE 
ONLY/ 

QUARTER X 3 
YEARS 

FULL  
MAINT. / 

 3 YEARS 

RATED  
LOAD  

PRESSURE 
RELIEF 

TEST 
(every 

3 years) 

NO-LOAD 
ELEVATOR 
GOVERNOR  

& SAFETY 
TEST 

(annual) 

FULL- 
LOAD 

ELEVATOR 
GOVERNOR 

& SAFETY 
TEST 
(every  

5 years) 

Hourly 
Rate/ 

Repairs 

1. Detroit Elevator Co. 
2121 Burdette 
Ferndale, MI 48220 

City Hall 
Community Center 
Art Center 
 
Water Plant 
Sewer Lift Station 
Sewer Lift Station 
 
TOTAL: 

$2,628.00 
$2,628.00 
$2,628.00 

 
 
 
 
 

$7,884.00 

 
 
 
 

$876.00 
$876.00 
$876.00 

 
$2,628.00 

No Bid 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No Bid 

$995.00 
 

$640.00 $995.00 $150.00 

2. Great Lakes Elevator 
530 E. Grand River 
 Williamston, MI 48895 
 
 

City Hall 
Community Center 
Art Center 
 
Water Plant 
Sewer Lift Station 
Sewer Lift Station 
 
TOTAL: 

$1,800.00 
$1,800.00 
$1,800.00 

 
 
 
 
 

$5,400.00 

 
 
 
 

$660.00 
$660.00 
$660.00 

 
$1,980.00 

$3,456.00 
$3,456.00 
$3,456.00 

 
 
 
 
 

$10,368.00 

$800.00 $400.00 $1,000.00 $145.00 



 
# BIDDER LOCATION OIL & GREASE 

ONLY/ 
MONTH 

X 3  
YEARS 

OIL & GREASE 
ONLY/ 

QUARTER  
X 3 

YEARS 

FULL  
MAINT. / 
 3 YEARS 

RATED  
LOAD  

PRESSURE 
RELIEF 

TEST 
(every 

3 years) 

NO-LOAD 
ELEVATOR 
GOVERNOR  

& SAFETY 
TEST 

(annual) 

FULL- 
LOAD 

ELEVATOR 
GOVERNOR 

& SAFETY 
TEST 
(every  

5 years) 

Hourly 
Rate/ 

Repairs 

3. Kone Elevator 
11864 Belder Ct. 
 Livonia, MI 48150 

City Hall 
Community Center 
Art Center 
 
Water Plant 
Sewer Lift  
Sewer Lift  
 
TOTAL: 

$1,260.00 
$1,260.00 
$1,260.00 

 
 
 
 
 

$3,780.00 

 
 
 
 

$1,416.00 
$1,416.00 
$1,416.00 

 
$4,248.00 

$4,824.00 
$4,680.00 
$4,824.00 

 
 
 
 
 

$14,328.00 

$1,130.00 $600.00 $1,130.00 $182.00 

4. ThyssenKrupp Elevator 
35432 Industrial  
 Livonia, MI 48150 

City Hall 
Community Center 
Art Center 
 
Water Plant 
Sewer Lift  
Sewer Lift  
 
TOTAL: 

No Bid 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No Bid 

 
 
 
 

$900.00 
$900.00 
$900.00 

 
$2,700.00 

$5,400.00 
$5,400.00 
$5,400.00 

 
 
 
 
 

$16,200.00 

$1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00 $186.00 

 
*Art Center pays their bill. 
 

Marilyn Dluge 
Finance Director/Treasurer 



CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the ________ day of ___________, 2014 by and 

between the CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, hereinafter called the Owner, and 
______________________________________, hereinafter called the Contractor, 
WITNESSETH, that whereas the CONTRACTOR intends to PROVIDE 
ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE PER BID SPECIFICATION #061405, hereinafter 
called the Project, in accordance with the Drawings, Specifications and other Bid 
Documents prepared by the Owner. 

 
NOW, THEREAFTER, the OWNER and CONTRACTOR for the considerations hereinafter 
set forth, agree as follows: 
 
2. CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish all necessary labor, materials, equipment, tools 

and services necessary to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner all work 
required for the construction of the Project, in strict compliance with the Bid 
Documents herein mentioned, which are hereby made a part of the Agreement, 
including the following addenda: 

 
ADDENDUM NO.               DATE 

      
    _________________  ___________________   
 

3. THE CONTRACTOR AGREES (Continued) 
 

a. Contract Time:  Work under this Agreement shall be commended upon written 
notice to proceed, and shall be completed monthly/quarterly for a three (3) year 
period  as defined in the General Conditions of the Bid Documents. 

 
 

4. THE OWNER AGREES to pay and the Contractor agrees to accept, in full payment 
for the performance of this Contract, the Contracted amount of:  
_____________________________________________________________________
_________________________ in accordance with the provisions of the Bid 
Documents.    
      

5. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement and all of the covenants hereof 
shall insure to the benefit of the binding upon the Owner and the Contractor 
respectively and his partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives.  Neither 
the Owner nor the Contractor shall have the right to assign, transfer or sublet his 
interests or obligations hereunder without written consent of the other party. 



 
6. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement, the 

day and year first above written: 
 

OWNER: CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 
 

ATTEST: ________________________ BY: _______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: ________________________ BY: _______________________________ 
 

CONTRACTOR:  DETROIT ELEVATOR  
 
ATTEST: _______________________   BY: _______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: ________________________ BY: _______________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 



CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 
 
 

Tabulation of sealed bids received and opened on Tuesday, June 24, 2014, for our estimated annual requirement of Ferric Chloride 
needed by the Wastewater Treatment Plant: 
 

BIDDER COST/DRY TON ESTIMATED 
ANNUAL USAGE 
(26-32 DRY TONS) 

1.Danco Chemicals, US, LLC 
   551 East Eleven Mile Road 
  Suite 3-B 
   Madison Heights, MI 48071 

$1,450.00 
(product 

Ordered from 
China) 

$37,700.00- 
$46,400.00 

2. Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. 
   4321 West 6tht Street 
   Lawrence, KS  66049 

$577.25 $15,008.50- 
$18,472.00 

3. PVS Technologies, Inc. 
   10900 Harper Avenue 
   Detroit, Michigan   48213 

$379.00 $9,854.00- 
$12,128.00 

 
Marilyn Dluge 

Finance Director/Treasurer 



CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 
 
 

Tabulation of quotations received for Parking Ticket Rolls for AIS Communications Software (specialized paper) needed by the 
Parking System: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Marilyn Dluge 
Finance Director/Treasurer 

BIDDER TOTAL COST/ 
500 ROLLS 

1.Integrity Business Solutions 
   26107 Sherwood 
   Warren, Michigan   48091 

$4,430.00 

2. Litho Printing Service, Inc. 
   21541 Gratiot Avenue 
   Eastpointe, Michigan   48021 

$3,210.00 



 

 

EXPLANATION OF CONSENT AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item No. 10-A 
 

 
City Commission Approval of Fiber Technologies Networks, L.L.C., METRO Act 
Right-of-Way Permit 
 
Attached is the permit from Fiber Technologies Networks, L.L.C., for access to and 
ongoing use of the public right-of-way for telecommunications providers under the 
Metropolitan Extension Telecommunications Rights-of-Way Oversight Act, Act No. 48 
of Public Acts of 2002, as amended (the “METRO Act”). 
 
Fiber Technologies Networks, L.L.C., is seeking a five year Unilateral METRO Act 
Permit to construct, install and maintain telecommunications facilities in the City’s right-
of-way in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Permit. 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Robert J. Bruner, Interim City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve and authorize the execution of the   

    Unilateral METRO Act Right-of-Way Permit 
between the City of Mount Clemens and Fiber 
Technologies Networks, L.L.C. 



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle



scardaris
Rectangle





EXPLANATION OF CONSENT AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item No. 10-B 
 
 
Request Street Closure for Lodewyck Street Block Party on August 16, 2014  
 
Lodewyck Street residents are seeking City Commission approval to close Lodewyck 
Street between Church and Robertson for a Block Party.  The event would be held on 
Saturday, August 16, 2014, from 4:00 p.m. until 11:00 p.m.  Barricades are being 
requested to restrict traffic during this time. 
 
Barricades would be placed at the street ends off to the shoulder on Friday, August 15th 
and the host of the Block Party would be responsible to pull them across the road at the 
beginning of the party and then return them to the shoulder at the end. 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Brian L. Tingley 
     Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Move to approve the closure of Lodewyck Street 

between Church and Robertson on August 16, 2014, 
from 4:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. for a Block Party. 









EXPLANATION OF CONSENT AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item No. 10-C 
 
 
Request Approval for The Old Crowd Parade on August 21, 2014 
 
“The Old Crowd” is asking the City Commission for permission to hold their 134th 
meeting and parade on August 21, 2014.  The route will begin at the Macomb County 
Building at 8:00 a.m. proceed north on Main Street to New Street to Walnut; then south 
on Walnut to Cass; east on Cass to Northbound Gratiot, and northeast to North River 
Road; then to Jones Street where the boarding of boats will take place for the trip down 
the Clinton River.  Furthermore, the request would require that Main Street between Cass 
and Market be closed to vehicular traffic from 8:00 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. and a police escort 
through the entire parade route. 
 
Upon City Commission approval, the Department of Public Services will assist with the 
approved parade route to help ensure that proper street closures are in place for a safe 
event.  No overtime expenses are expected. 
 
A copy of their Certificate of Insurance will be provided to the City prior to the event. 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Brian L. Tingley 
     Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Move to approve The Old Crowd parade and street 

closures from 8 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. on Thursday, 
August 21, 2014. 











 

 

EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – July 7, 2014 
 
 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor Barb Dempsey and 
  All City Commissioners 
 
FROM: Robert J. Bruner, Jr., Interim City Manager 
 
DATE: July 2, 2014 
 
RE:  Report from the City Manager’s Office 
 

 
1. Charter Amendment:  On March 3, 2014, the City Commission adopted a 

resolution to place a City Charter amendment on the August 5, 2014, election 
ballot.  The Charter amendment would increase the City’s maximum millage rate 
from 15 mills to 20 mills.  Although the City Charter limits the City to 15 mills, 
“Headlee Rollbacks” reduced the City’s maximum millage from to 13.7097 mills 
in 2005 and it has been the same ever since.  If approved, the Charter amendment 
would allow the City Commission to increase the millage by a maximum of 
6.2903 mills, from 13.7097 mills to 20 mills, about a 14% increase in the total 
millage for principal residences (44.2762 mills in 2013).  However, the City 
Commission may choose to levy less than the maximum.  I will deliver the 
attached presentation regarding the Charter Amendment at the July 7, 2014, City 
Commission meeting. 



August 5, 2014

City Charter Amendment

Ballot QuestionBallot Question

Draft

June 30, 2014



Agenda

• What is the City Charter?

• What is the City Charter amendment?

• How will the ballot question be worded?

• Why did the City Commission put this Charter • Why did the City Commission put this Charter 

amendment on the August 5, 2014 ballot?

• What has the City done to cut costs?

6/30/2014 DRAFT 2

scardaris
Rectangle



Agenda

• How much will this Charter amendment cost?

• What will happen if the amendment passes?

• What will happen if the amendment fails?

• Where do I vote?• Where do I vote?

• Important dates

• Questions

6/30/2014 DRAFT 3

scardaris
Rectangle



What is the City Charter?

• The City Charter is the legal document 
establishing the City

• January 26, 1837: Michigan became the 26th 
state admitted to the Union and Mount state admitted to the Union and Mount 
Clemens was incorporated as a village

• April 5,1954:  Voters approved the current City 
Charter 60 years ago (effective June 21, 1954)

– Before the “Headlee Amendment” of 1978 and 

Proposal A of 1994

6/30/2014 DRAFT 4

scardaris
Rectangle



What is the City Charter Amendment?

Current

• Exclusive of any levies 
authorized by statute to be 
made beyond charter tax 
rate limitations, the annual 

Proposed

• Exclusive of any levies 

authorized by statute to be 

made beyond charter tax 

rate limitations, the annual 
rate limitations, the annual 
ad valorem tax levy shall 
not exceed one and one-
half per cent of the 
assessed value [15 mills] of 
all real and personal 
property subject to taxation 
in the City.

rate limitations, the annual 

ad valorem tax levy shall 

not exceed two per cent of 

the assessed value [20 

mills] of all real and 

personal property subject to 

taxation in the City.

6/30/2014 DRAFT 5

scardaris
Rectangle



How will the question be worded?

• An amendment to Section 10.161, Sec. 120 of 
Article 9 of the City Charter to increase the 
authorized maximum millage from fifteen (15) 
mills to twenty (20) mills which may be levied 
annually by the City Commission for general annually by the City Commission for general 
municipal purposes, including but not limited to 
fire and law enforcement services.

• This amendment will increase the charter limit 
from 15 mills to 20 mills.

• Shall the proposed amendment be adopted?

6/30/2014 DRAFT 6

scardaris
Rectangle



Why did the City Commission put this 

on the August 5, 2014 ballot?

• The City’s two largest revenue sources account 

for nearly 75% of total General Fund revenue

• Property tax revenue decreased by more than 

30% during the Great Recession30% during the Great Recession

• State Revenue Sharing decreased by more 

than 50% 

6/30/2014 DRAFT 7

scardaris
Rectangle



Property Tax Revenue

$125,000 $268,000 $724,000 $1,161,000 $1,648,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

6/30/2014 8

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

FYE 2008 FYE 2009 FYE 2010 FYE 2011 FYE 2012 FYE 2013

Actual Revenue Lost Revenue

DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



State Revenue Sharing

$71,000 $414,000 $681,000 $768,000 $833,000 $1,053,000 $1,152,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

6/30/2014 9DRAFT

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

FYE 2000 FYE 2001 FYE 2002 FYE 2003 FYE 2004 FYE 2005 FYE 2006 FYE 2007 FYE 2008 FYE 2009 FYE 2010 FYE 2011 FYE 2012 FYE 2013

Actual Revenue Lost Revenue

scardaris
Rectangle



What has the City done to cut costs?

• The City cut costs by  $4.3 million between 

2005 and 2012

• The City reduced expenses by nearly a third

• Cost-cutting increased the City’s cash reserves • Cost-cutting increased the City’s cash reserves 

by more than 500% in just four years

• The cuts have not been enough to balance the 

budget in recent years

6/30/2014 10DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



Expenses

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 11

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

FYE 2005 FYE 2006 FYE 2007 FYE 2008 FYE 2009 FYE 2010 FYE 2011 FYE 2012 FYE 2013 FYE 2014 

(estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



Net Revenue

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

6/30/2014 12DRAFT

-$2,000,000

-$1,500,000

-$1,000,000

-$500,000

$0

FYE 2005 FYE 2006 FYE 2007 FYE 2008 FYE 2009 FYE 2010 FYE 2011 FYE 2012 FYE 2013 FYE 2014 

(estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



General Fund Balance

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

$5,000,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 13

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

FYE 2005 FYE 2006 FYE 2007 FYE 2008 FYE 2009 FYE 2010 FYE 2011 FYE 2012 FYE 2013 FYE 2014 

(estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



How much will this cost?

• The answer depends on two things:

– The tax rate the City Commission actually levies 

– The Taxable Value of your property

6/30/2014 DRAFT 14

scardaris
Rectangle



Summer 2013 Millage Rate Breakdown

Macomb Intermediate 

School District

7%

Mount Clemens Public Library

6%
Macomb Community College

3%

6/30/2014 DRAFT 15

City of Mount Clemens

37%

Mount Clemens Community 

School District

22%

State Education Tax

14%

Macomb County

11%

scardaris
Rectangle



How much will this cost?

• Find your Taxable Value (TV) on your most 

recent tax bill or Notice of Assessment

• Taxable Value (TV) also available online at 

https://is.bsasoftware.comhttps://is.bsasoftware.com

• Divide Taxable Value (TV) by 1,000 (TV/1,000)

• Multiply by 6.2903 (TV/1,000*6.2903)

• TV/1,000*6.2903 = Maximum tax increase

6/30/2014 DRAFT 16

scardaris
Rectangle



How much will this cost?

Precinct Address

Taxable Value, 

2014

Tax 

Rate

Taxes, 

Annual

Taxes, 

Monthly

1 181 Robertson St $58,503 6.2903 $368 $31

2 145 S Wilson Blvd $93,957 6.2903 $591 $49

3 177 Washington St $32,030 6.2903 $201 $17

4 140 Ahrens St $30,412 6.2903 $191 $164 140 Ahrens St $30,412 6.2903 $191 $16

5 176 N Walnut St $20,315 6.2903 $128 $11

6 27 Dickinson St $12,259 6.2903 $77 $6

9 1379 Kingsley St $33,933 6.2903 $213 $18

Average $40,201 $253 $21

6/30/2014 DRAFT 17

scardaris
Rectangle



How much will this cost?

1379 Kingsley St

$1,663 

$1,843 
$1,778 

$1,818 
$1,907 $1,901 $1,922 

$1,615 $1,649 $1,676 

$1,927 

$1,500 

$2,000 

$2,500 

6/30/2014 DRAFT 18

$0 

$500 

$1,000 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

(estimated)

2015 

(estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



How much will this cost?

177 Washington St

$2,858 

$3,079 
$2,977 

$3,051 

$2,135 $2,000 

$2,500 

$3,000 

$3,500 

6/30/2014 DRAFT 19

$2,135 

$1,782 $1,760 

$1,565 $1,597 $1,623 

$1,861 

$0 

$500 

$1,000 

$1,500 

$2,000 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

(estimated)

2015 

(estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



How much will this cost?

145 S Wilson Blvd

$3,876 

$4,131 
$3,994 

$4,093 
$4,303 $4,290 

$4,424 

$4,182 $4,275 $4,344 

$5,034 

$4,000 

$5,000 

$6,000 

6/30/2014 DRAFT 20

$1,041 $1,004
$840 $797 $742

$338

$60 $0 $24 $31 $47

$0 

$1,000 

$2,000 

$3,000 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

(estimated)

2015 

(estimated)

Total Taxes Uncollected City Operating Taxes

scardaris
Rectangle



145 S Wilson Blvd

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

$180,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 21

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

(estimated)

Taxable Value Untaxed Value

scardaris
Rectangle



Average Principle Residence 

Tax Bill, 2013

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 22

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

Dearborn 

Heights

Southgate Center Line Westland Average Ecorse Taylor Wayne Mount 

Clemens

Inkster Roseville Melvindale

scardaris
Rectangle



Average Principle Residence 

Tax Bill, with Charter amendment

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 23

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

Dearborn 

Heights

Southgate Center Line Mount 

Clemens

Westland Average Ecorse Taylor Wayne Inkster Roseville Melvindale

scardaris
Rectangle



Average Principle Residence 

Tax Bill, 2013

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

New 

Baltimore

Warren Sterling 

Heights

Utica Fraser Richmond Average Center 

Line

Saint Clair 

Shores

Memphis Mount 

Clemens

Roseville Eastpointe

6/30/2014 24DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



Average Principle Residence 

Tax Bill, with Charter amendment

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

New 

Baltimore

Warren Sterling 

Heights

Utica Fraser Richmond Average Center 

Line

Saint Clair 

Shores

Mount 

Clemens

Memphis Roseville Eastpointe

6/30/2014 25DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



What will happen if this passes?

• The maximum millage would return City 

revenues to their FYE 2009 levels in FYE 2016

• The City can sustain current service levels and 

restore some of what was lost during the restore some of what was lost during the 

Great Recession

• The City must continue to cut costs where it 

can because the cost of maintaining current 

services will increase faster than revenues

6/30/2014 DRAFT 26

scardaris
Rectangle



Revenues,

with Charter amendment

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 27

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

FYE 2005 FYE 2006 FYE 2007 FYE 2008 FYE 2009 FYE 2010 FYE 2011 FYE 2012 FYE 2013 FYE 2014 

(estimated)

FYE 2015 

(estimated)

FYE 2016 

(estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



Net Revenue,

with Charter amendment

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

6/30/2014 28DRAFT

-$1,500,000

-$1,000,000

-$500,000

$0

FYE 2014 (estimated) FYE 2015 (estimated) FYE 2016 (estimated) FYE 2017 (estimated) FYE 2018 (estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



General Fund Balance,

with Charter amendment

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

$5,000,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 29

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

FYE 2005 FYE 2007 FYE 2009 FYE 2011 FYE 2013 FYE 2015

(estimated)

FYE 2017

(estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



What will happen if this fails?

• Current service levels are unsustainable

• The City will run out of money in 2017 without 

increasing revenues and/or decreasing 

expendituresexpenditures

6/30/2014 30DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



Revenues,

without Charter amendment

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 31

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

FYE 2005 FYE 2006 FYE 2007 FYE 2008 FYE 2009 FYE 2010 FYE 2011 FYE 2012 FYE 2013 FYE 2014 

(estimated)

FYE 2015 

(estimated)

FYE 2016 

(estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



Net Revenue,

without Charter amendment

-$400,000

-$200,000

$0

FYE 2014 (estimated) FYE 2015 (estimated) FYE 2016 (estimated) FYE 2017 (estimated)

6/30/2014 32DRAFT

-$1,400,000

-$1,200,000

-$1,000,000

-$800,000

-$600,000

scardaris
Rectangle



General Fund Balance,

without Charter amendment

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 33

-$500,000

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

FYE 2014 (estimated) FYE 2015 (estimated) FYE 2016 (estimated) FYE 2017 (estimated)

scardaris
Rectangle



What will happen if this fails?

More Service Reductions

• Law Enforcement ($2.4 M)

• Fire Department  ($1.4 M)

• Dispatch ($400 K)

User Fee Increases

• Currently $1.2 million

• Less than 15% of total 
revenue

• They would need to double 
• Dispatch ($400 K)

• Park Maintenance ($98 K)

• Dial-A-Ride ($90 K)

– On-demand service

– Park & Ride Shuttle

• Community Center ($51 K)

• Animal Control ($27 K)

• They would need to double 
to balance the budget

• The City’s ability to use fees 
to support essential services 
is limited by the Bolt v. City 
of Lansing court decision 
(1998)

6/30/2014 DRAFT 34

scardaris
Rectangle



Expenses per Capita, FYE 2013:

Southeast Michigan Communities

6/30/2014 35DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



Similar Metro Detroit Cities

1. Center Line

2. Dearborn Heights

3. Ecorse 

4. Inkster 

6. Roseville

7. Southgate

8. Taylor 

9. Wayne 4. Inkster 

5. Melvindale 

9. Wayne 

10. Westland 

6/30/2014 DRAFT 36

scardaris
Rectangle



Taxable Value per Capita

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 37

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

Ecorse Southgate Taylor Wayne Mount 

Clemens

Dearborn 

Heights

Westland Average Melvindale Center Line Roseville Inkster

scardaris
Rectangle



Homeownership Rate

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

6/30/2014 DRAFT 38

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

Dearborn 

Heights

Roseville Southgate Taylor Westland Average Melvindale Wayne Mount 

Clemens

Ecorse Center Line Inkster

scardaris
Rectangle



Per Capita Income

$20,000 

$25,000 

$30,000 

6/30/2014 DRAFT 39

$0 

$5,000 

$10,000 

$15,000 

Southgate Westland Mount 

Clemens

Dearborn 

Heights

Roseville Average Center Line Taylor Wayne Melvindale Ecorse Inkster

scardaris
Rectangle



Expenses per Capita, FYE 2013

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

6/30/2014 40DRAFT

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

Wayne Melvindale Ecorse Taylor Average Center Line Roseville Southgate Westland Dearborn 

Heights

Mount 

Clemens

Inkster

scardaris
Rectangle



Expenses per Capita/

Per Capita Income

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

6/30/2014 DRAFT 41

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

Ecorse Wayne Melvindale Taylor Average Center Line Inkster Roseville Dearborn 

Heights

Westland Southgate Mount 

Clemens

scardaris
Rectangle



Macomb County Cities

1. Center Line 

2. Eastpointe 

3. Fraser 

4. Memphis

7. Richmond

8. Roseville 

9. Saint Clair Shores 

10. Sterling Heights 4. Memphis

5. Mount Clemens 

6. New Baltimore 

10. Sterling Heights 

11. Utica 

12. Warren

6/30/2014 DRAFT 42

scardaris
Rectangle



Taxable Value per Capita

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 43

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

Utica Sterling 

Heights

Fraser New 

Baltimore

Richmond Warren Average Saint Clair 

Shores

Mount 

Clemens

Center 

Line

Roseville Memphis Eastpointe

scardaris
Rectangle



Homeownership Rate

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

6/30/2014 DRAFT 44

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

New 

Baltimore

Saint Clair 

Shores

Sterling 

Heights

Eastpointe Warren Richmond Average Fraser Roseville Mount 

Clemens

Center Line

scardaris
Rectangle



Per Capita Income

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

New 

Baltimore

Saint Clair 

Shores

Fraser Richmond Sterling 

Heights

Average Mount 

Clemens

Warren Roseville Center Line Eastpointe

6/30/2014 45DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



Expenses per Capita, FYE 2013

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

6/30/2014 46DRAFT

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

Fraser Utica Center 

Line

Roseville Saint Clair 

Shores

Average Warren New 

Baltimore

Eastpointe Memphis Mount 

Clemens

Richmond Sterling 

Heights

scardaris
Rectangle



Expenses per Capita/

Per Capita Income

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

6/30/2014 DRAFT 47

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

Center Line Roseville Fraser Eastpointe Warren Average Mount 

Clemens

Saint Clair 

Shores

Richmond New 

Baltimore

Sterling 

Heights

scardaris
Rectangle



Emergency Management Cities

1. Allen Park 

2. Benton Harbor 

3. Ecorse 

4. Flint 

5. Hamtramck 

6. Highland Park 

7. Inkster 

8. River Rouge 4. Flint 8. River Rouge 

6/30/2014 DRAFT 48

scardaris
Rectangle



Taxable Value per Capita

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

$45,000

6/30/2014 DRAFT 49

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

River Rouge Allen Park Ecorse Mount 

Clemens

Average Highland Park Inkster Benton 

Harbor

Hamtramck Flint

scardaris
Rectangle



Homeownership Rate

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

6/30/2014 DRAFT 50

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

Allen Park Mount 

Clemens

Ecorse River Rouge Flint Average Hamtramck Inkster Benton 

Harbor

Highland Park

scardaris
Rectangle



Per Capita Income

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

Allen Park Mount 

Clemens

Ecorse Average Inkster Flint River Rouge Highland Park Hamtramck Benton 

Harbor

6/30/2014 51DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



Expenses per Capita, FYE 2013

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

6/30/2014 52DRAFT

$0

$500

$1,000

River Rouge Highland Park Benton 

Harbor

Average Allen Park Ecorse Hamtramck Flint Mount 

Clemens

Inkster

scardaris
Rectangle



Expenses per Capita/

Per Capita Income

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

16.00%

18.00%

6/30/2014 DRAFT 53

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

River Rouge Benton 

Harbor

Highland Park Hamtramck Average Ecorse Flint Inkster Allen Park Mount 

Clemens

scardaris
Rectangle



What will happen if this fails?

• The City’s expenditures per resident are 
already among the lowest in the region

• Balancing the budget without increasing 
revenues will decrease services even furtherrevenues will decrease services even further

• Recapturing forgone revenue like tax 
abatements and tax increment financing (TIF) 
are insufficient to balance the budget

• Economic development is a long-term solution

• Emergency management seems likely

6/30/2014 54DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



Forgone Revenue

Tax Abatements

• Eliminating current tax 

abatements would return 

less than $30,000 to the 

General Fund

Tax Increment Financing

• Tax increment financing 

from the General Fund was 

reduced by 66%

• Eliminating the remaining General Fund
• Eliminating the remaining 

tax increment financing 

would return less than 

$43,000 to the General 

Fund

6/30/2014 DRAFT 55

scardaris
Rectangle



Economic Development

5.0000 mills ($1.6 million)

• The City’s existing tax base 

would have to grow by 

more than 36% outside the 

Tax Increment Finance (TIF) 

6.2903 mills ($2.0 million)

• The City’s existing tax base 

would have to grow by 

more than 45% outside the 

Tax Increment Finance (TIF) Tax Increment Finance (TIF) 

district to generate an 

additional $1.6 million

Tax Increment Finance (TIF) 

district to generate an 

additional $2.0 million

6/30/2014 56DRAFT

scardaris
Rectangle



What will happen if this fails?

• The Local Financial Stability and Choice Act 

(Public Act 436 of 2012)

• Request the state conduct a preliminary 

review to determine the existence of a review to determine the existence of a 

financial emergency

• More details will be provided at the July 21 

City Commission meeting

6/30/2014 DRAFT 57

scardaris
Rectangle



Where do I vote?

• Precinct 1: Turner 

Chapel CME Church

– 125 Clinton River Dr

• Precinct 2: Wilson 

• Precinct 5: Cairns 

Community Center

– 58 Orchard St

• Precinct 6: City Hall• Precinct 2: Wilson 

Gymnasium

– 58 S Wilson Blvd

• Precincts 3 & 4: 

Community Center

– 300 N Groesbeck Hwy

• Precinct 6: City Hall

– 1 Crocker Blvd

• Precinct 9: Seminole 

Elementary School

– 1500 Mulberry St

• Absentee

6/30/2014 DRAFT 58

scardaris
Rectangle



Important Dates

• Monday, July 7, 2014

– Last day to register to vote

• Tuesday, August 5, 2014

– Election Day– Election Day

– Vote between 7:00 AM and 8:00 PM

– Absentee ballots are due to the City Clerk’s Office 

by 8:00 PM

• Call the City Clerk’s Office at (586) 469-6818 
Ext 3 if you have questions about voting

6/30/2014 DRAFT 59

scardaris
Rectangle



QUESTIONS?

City Charter Amendment

6/30/2014 DRAFT 60

scardaris
Rectangle


	Agenda.
	Administrative Response to Issues or Questions Raised During Previous Meeting.
	Minutes-June 9, 2014.
	Minutes-June 16, 2014.
	9-A-Public Hearing for the Reallocation of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding for Fiscal Years 2013-2015.
	9-B-Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amending the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) District Boundaries.
	9-C-Request City Commission Consideration and Approval of City Manager Appointment and Employment Agreement.
	9-D-Request Approval of a One-Year Commitment with Shelbyvision Presents, LLC, for Producing an Independence Day Event in Mount Clemens from June 26 through June 28, 2015.
	9-E-Adoption of a Resolution Opposing the Legalization of Marijuana for General Use in Macomb County Communities.
	9-F-Approve Purchases and Payment of Invoices.
	10-A-City Commission Approval of Fiber Technologies Networks, L.L.C., METRO Act Right-of-Way Permit.
	10-B-Request Street Closure for Lodewyck Street Block Party on August 16, 2014.
	10-C-Request Approval for The Old Crowd Parade on August 21, 2014.
	City Manager's Report.



